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SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ:  Call to order the Senate Governmental Organization Committee.  Thank you, Members, for being here.  And we’re going to go ahead and proceed through the agenda.  I think there are no changes to the agenda.


I’m Dean Florez, the chair of this committee.  And I’d like to thank my colleagues, Senator McLeod and also Senator Wiggins, I think, is here, and Senator Yee.  Thank you for being here.

Sergeant, if you can continue to call members, that would be great.  Members, I’d like to say that the reason we’re having this hearing, the very first hearing of the G.O. Committee, is that I think we need to set the bar at some point in time.  We’re going to have a lot of hearings this year on Indian gaming compacts, a lot of hearings on racetrack legislation, a whole host of hearings on card clubs, and, of course, we always have our classic hearings with the Lottery in this committee, but I thought it would be good prior to having those specific hearings on bills that we set some sort of bar or standard on, at the end of the day, what are the impacts of all the decisions that we will make on those particular industries when it comes to problem and pathological gaming, gambling in California?  And today we’re going to talk about the social costs; we’re going to talk about how they’re going to be addressed.  And I do want to thank everyone who is going to participate in this particular hearing.


Obviously the subject of gambling abuse, either problem or pathological, is important to this committee.  As you know, there’s been quite a bit of increase in terms of casino-style gambling in this state, and I think it’s time that we have a full examination of the issue, and we’ve had a couple of reports that have sat on some shelves, and we want to make sure the reports have a full airing in this committee, and we want to make sure that we understand them and, of course, we’ll have a lots of questions as well.  I think we’re also very interested in understanding what types of services are available and, more importantly, what types of treatment is going to be available to those addicted to gambling.  I’d also like to tell you that the question of funding will be an issue at this hearing.  There’s no doubt, that if you look at what other states are doing in terms of funding, that California could do more or should do more and the issue for us today will be what sources of funding are available as we move forward.  I can tell you that there will be some discussions on those funding issues as part of our regular bill hearings scheduled.  But today, we’d like to ask some questions from those who produce those reports as well, and that is, how much money is going to be necessary to really get at what we would call $500,000 to a million problem gamblers in the State of California, and that’s a very important question for this committee to discuss today as well.


Members, I didn’t know if our senators have any opening statements or questions.  Okay.  Well, let’s go ahead and begin, if we could.

Let’s have Dr. Charlene Wear Simmons, Assistant Director, California Research Bureau, Gambling in California Report.  We would like to go over that report, if you could, and thank you for being here.


DR. CHARLENE WEAR SIMMONS:  Is that on?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  There we go.  Okay.


DR. SIMMONS:  I think everybody—I want to make sure everybody has this handout because I’m going to be referring to it.  Great.


Well, good morning, Senator Florez and Members of the Committee.  My name is Charlene Wear Simmons, and I’m assistant director of the California Research Bureau in the State Library.  As you know, the Research Bureau conducts research for a elected state officials.


In this case, former Attorney General Bill Lockyer requested that we examine the gambling industry in California with particular attention to its social and economic impacts.  And as Senator Florez mentioned, the result was a report, Gambling in the Golden State.  I believe everyone has a copy.  It’s also available on our website at www.library.ca.gov.


My role this morning is to briefly describe California’s gambling industry as background to understanding why problem and pathological gambling had become important issues for California’s families and communities.  I’m not gambler, so that when I began my research, I was astounded at the size and scope of gambling in California, which is the largest in the nation.  No other state has such a high concentration and combination of gambling opportunities.  California is home to the largest share of gamblers and the largest share of casino trips.  California gamblers can bet on the Lottery in their neighborhoods; they can bet on slot machines, table, and card games at any of 57 tribal casinos, wager on the horses at any of seven racetracks, nine racing county fairs, 20 simulcast locations or over the internet legally, bet on cards at any of 92 card rooms, or play bingo at any number of venues, including at some Indian casinos.  In addition, there is a significant amount of private wagering on cards at charity fundraisers and on casino ship cruises, as well as illegal gambling, such as betting on sports, internet poker, cockfighting, and other activities.

As you can see from the charts that I’ve prepared in the handout, Californians wagered more than $15.5 billion in Indian casinos, card rooms, on the Lottery, and at the racetrack in 2005.  Those are gross gaming revenues which is before you subtract prizes and operational expenses to arrive at the industry’s net revenues.  The second chart shows gross gaming revenues are increasing at an impressive rate, particularly at Indian casinos which have more than doubled in the last four years.  Most analysts agree that the California market is ripe for further expansion.

I think surprising to me, because I just developed these numbers, California has now surpassed Nevada as the largest gambling state, and you can see that in Chart 3.  In order to compare the two states’ gambling industry revenues using comparable state data, I subtracted the amount paid out at horseraces to winning ticket holders from the California total because that’s how Nevada keeps track of their information.  So as you can see in 2005, California’s gambling industry had $12.16 billion in revenues compared to $11.65 (billion) in Nevada from that state’s slot machines, table and card games, wagering on sports, and betting on horses.

Now historically social views and the law about gambling in the United States have varied from open acceptance to prohibition.  Even in the best of times—and this is a good time—states have regulated gambling to try and control criminal involvement, corruption, and the social ills created by problem in pathological gambling.  Now if everyone could gamble responsibly, as most people do, for recreation and leisure, we would not need to discuss problem and pathological gambling.  However, a significant percentage of people who gamble do so excessively, harming themselves, their families, and their communities.

As access to gambling, either state promoted or authorized, increases, the prevalence of gambling problems is also increasing.  Gambling problems occur on a continuum and they vary in severity and duration.  So according to the National Council on problem gambling, problem gambling refers to gambling that significantly interferes with the person’s basic occupational, interpersonal, and financial functioning.  Pathological gambling is the most severe form, and it’s classified by the American Psychiatric Association as an impulse control or addictive disorder involving a “failure to resist an impulse, drive, or temptation to perform some act that is harmful to the person or others.”  An individual suffering from pathological gambling is unable to participate responsibly in gambling and is unable to stop.

An analysis of a large number of studies published in the Journal of the American Medical Association, or JAMA, in 1999 estimated that during the previous year, 1.2 percent of the U.S. adult population were pathological gamblers and 2.8 percent were problem gamblers.  Now using these prevalence rates, we estimated that there are about 925,000 problem and pathological gamblers in California.  This number is in the range of the recent California prevalence study that was conducted by the Office of Problem and Pathological Gambling.
Gambling patrons, however, experience higher rates of problem and pathological gambling than the general population.  So the JAMA review found that during the previous year, 4.6 percent of casino gamblers, 3.6 percent of Lottery players, and 14.3 percent of gamblers wagering on horseracing were pathological gamblers.  An additional 4.5 percent of casino gamblers, 5.2 percent of Lottery gamblers, and 25 percent of gamblers bidding on horses were problem gamblers.  Pathological and problem gamblers in California are likely to spend their time at casinos, the racetrack, or the card room with card games and slot machines, the favored gambling choices.
Other high-risk groups include adults with mental health and substance abuse issues, adolescents, and some ethnic groups.  For example, the California Commission on Asian and Pacific Islander Affairs has identified problem gambling as a serious community concern.  And the recent California Prevalence Study found that African Americans are at risk, although this sample size was small.  The problem in pathological gamblers can create significant costs for themselves, their families, and their communities.  The recent California Prevalence Study found that 8 percent of problem and pathological gamblers reported attempting suicide, 11 percent had filed for bankruptcy, 35 percent had been arrested, and 20 percent had been incarcerated.  Other reported public health impacts include domestic violence and child abuse.  Several studies have found that crime rates, particularly for property crimes, increased between 8 and 10 percent from four to six years after a casino opens.  The authors surmise that local residents who develop problem and pathological gambling habits are responsible for some of this increase.

The National Gambling Impact Study Commission found in 1999 that problem and pathological gamblers “had higher rates of receipt of past-year unemployment and welfare benefits, bankruptcy, arrest, incarceration, divorce, poor or fair physical health, and mental health treatment.  The commission estimated the annual cost associated with each adult pathological gambler to be $1,200 or $715 for each adult problem gambler.  That’s $5 billion in total per year.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  How much is it total?

DR. SIMMONS:  That was $5 billion that was in 1999.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Billion?

DR. SIMMONS:  Billion.  Now we updated these 1999 estimates to 2006 dollars and applied them to California, and we found that the annual cost with problem associated with problem and pathological gamblers to be nearly $1 billion.

I have included in your handout Nevada’s regulations requiring that gambling operations provide programs to address problem gambling.  These include employee training, conspicuous posting of materials about problem and pathological gambling, along with referrals for assistance and programs to allow patrons to limit credit, check cashing, or direct-mail marketing.  Failure to institute these activities is grounds for disciplinary action by the state.

In contrast, as you can see in the handout, and now we’re about on the fourth page there, the California State Lottery homepage offers a link that I find hard to read or find, to information about responsible gambling.  The California Horseracing Board actually provides direct links from its state website to three private betting services, such as Youbet.com.  I’m sorry that it didn’t print out well.  That’s just a function the way their homepages or their page is coded.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me interrupt.  On the Lottery page, I still haven’t found it.
DR. SIMMONS:  It’s on the top.  It’s in small, gray print, Responsible Gambling.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Play Responsibly; is that it?

DR. SIMMONS:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That’s the smallest font on the Lottery website.

DR. SIMMONS:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that’s a state-sponsored website.

DR. SIMMONS:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  All right.

DR. SIMMONS:  Just as the horseracing…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I haven’t gone to that one yet, so let me look…

DR. SIMMONS:  As I said, it didn’t print well.  It has to do with the way they’ve coded the page.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.  Where would that be, though?


DR. SIMMONS:  Actually, you’d have to go through Advanced Deposit Wagering, is the link.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And then you would get…


DR. SIMMONS:  And then you would get it.  But as you can see, it has the state’s official logo on it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  State websites with links to private…


DR. SIMMONS:  Youbet.com, TBG.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the link to the problem gambling is embedded?


DR. SIMMONS:  I didn’t find one but it may be that I just didn’t find it.  I can’t say it wasn’t there.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  They’re coming up, so we’ll ask them.  Okay.  Go ahead.

DR. SIMMONS:  Okay.  Also, while the state’s 1999 Tribal State Compact with 61 tribes does not mention problem gambling or require programs to address it, although six amended compacts and one new compact do establish additional standards ranging from local mitigation to in-house programs, and some tribes have developed their own programs.

Finally, the issue of underage gambling is a serious one, as a number of studies point out that adolescents, particularly boys, who engage in adult forms of gambling are more likely to become problem and pathological gamblers.  Based on prevalence data in Oregon, California could have as many as 600,000 adolescent problem and pathological gamblers.  As far as I could find out, no California Lottery retailer, racetrack, or card room has been seriously disciplined for allowing underage minors to engage in gambling.


This concludes my testimony and I’m happy to respond to your questions.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Very good report and just a couple, and maybe members have some questions.


You didn’t mention internet gambling at all in your presentation, for the lower—it’s for kids; is that correct?

DR. SIMMONS:  Right.  A lot of kids do engage in what’s basically not legal.  In any event, it’s not legal to offer, for instance, internet poker.  I did mention that as the internet, illegal gambling.  It is legal to gamble on horseracing over the internet in California.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  And let’s go, just a couple of questions.  The regulatory bodies, from your purview, are they, from your vantage point, able to address problem gambling, or is this just thrown to an office?  In other words, we have regulators and we have an office.


DR. SIMMONS:  I didn’t evaluate that, but there’s no reason that they couldn’t.  As I mentioned, Nevada does have very, I think, well-articulated requirements in their gambling regulations.  There’s no reason that California…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  …couldn’t implement similar…


DR. SIMMONS:  Right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the employment and financial benefits, obviously you mentioned profits.  But in terms of the employment and financial benefits to the state, how do we translate those, from your vantage point, to combat gambling abuse?  I mean, are we doing a sufficient enough job in terms of the amount put forward at this point in time?


DR. SIMMONS:  I think, Senator, you did point out in your opening remarks that the state puts a very small amount of money into the Office of Problem Gambling and there are…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  So like $3 million?

DR. SIMMONS:  Yes, $3 million.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We have a $1 billion problem?


DR. SIMMONS:  And as I understand it, from reading their materials in the Prevalence Report, there are very few people who even are engaging in treatment.  So it’s not just a matter of find someone.  It’s actually there are not very many people available.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And you also mentioned the $1,200 figure and the $750 figure.  Are you referring to what with that?


DR. SIMMONS:  Those were the costs that were estimated in the Journal of the American Medical…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Per problem?


DR. SIMMONS:  Per adult in the U.S. for problem and pathological gambling.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And that’s how you backed into your $1 billion?


DR. SIMMONS:  Yes, right.  And then as I mentioned for gamblers, the figures are actually higher.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just from your overall thought, does the increase of gambling in this state also increase the problem of gambling abuse?  Is it exponential or is it…


DR. SIMMONS:  I don’t know that it’s exponential.  But certainly, as there are more opportunities available, there are more opportunities for people to engage in gambling and develop problems.  I think Nevada has the highest, perhaps the highest prevalence rates, and that’s where the most opportunities are available, which would suggest that there’s some link that I don’t know what it is and I’ve never seen a literature that…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have an idea of how much Nevada puts towards problem gambling?


DR. SIMMONS:  I don’t.  I’m sorry.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Could you get that for us?


DR. SIMMONS:  Yes.  I’d be happy to.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Maybe I’ll ask the other witnesses, because you said we surpassed Nevada now at this point, correct?


DR. SIMMONS:  In terms of the revenues.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Revenues, right.  Okay.  And you mentioned the problem and pathological gambling.  The distinction again for a problem and a pathological?


DR. SIMMONS:  The problem, it’s sort of a continuum.  So when they do these prevalence studies and they measure different attributes—for instance, lying to your family, financial problems, chasing losses—you know, putting more money in, thinking you’re going to get back, and getting sort of deeper into a hole—problem gamblers would range on the shorter end of that.  They have only two or three maybe of those attributes; whereas a pathological gambler would have, you know, somewhere between eight and ten.  I’m sure Dr. Fong can also go into that in more detail in terms of how they measure it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And just from your vantage point, what should we focus on this state?  Problem gambler or the pathological gambler or at risk?


DR. SIMMONS:  Right.  It is a whole spectrum, and I think actually, if you were to focus, given the limited resources that you mentioned, probably focusing on the most severe cases would make the most sense as a priority.  But I’m just haphazarding a guess.  I haven’t really done research in just seeing where the most effective programs are.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But it seems that even in the pathological category, the estimate is how much in California again?

DR. SIMMONS:  In terms of the numbers?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  Number.  Was it 300,000?


DR. SIMMONS:  Yes, somewhere in there.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I think the cost of a six-week program or some similar type of treatment is roughly…


DR. SIMMONS:  It was about $280, I think; is that right?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  _____?


DR. SIMMONS:  That’s $2,800.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Two thousand, right.  So we’re probably pretty much underfunded just on the pathological…


DR. SIMMONS:  In terms of arriving at a number for treatment, I talked with the folks at the gambling hotline, What would a six-week course be?  And then the rest would be free through Gamblers Anonymous.  So it’s not a fancy course; it’s not going to the Betty Ford Center or something like that.  It’s a pretty barebones estimate.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What would you say to the average constituent that I’ve talked to that says, you know, these folks have their own problems.  I mean, why should we put state money to help them when there’s so many other needs in the state?  It’s kind of the argument of why don’t they just stop and therefore we wouldn’t have to throw any money at this?  I mean, what’s the answer to that, from your vantage point?

DR. SIMMONS:  Well, some people can’t stop.  I think your literature demonstrates that and they do need assistance.  In terms of state support, I wouldn’t put a value on spending money on different directions.  I’m not able to do that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But are you saying state support, when people ask a question, I guess I ask, do taxpayers consider that out of the taxpayer dollar but is it—or is it rather the casinos or the racetracks or the actual promoters of gambling?


DR. SIMMONS:  It could be considered a cost of business.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Cost of business?


DR. SIMMONS:  It could be.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Members, any questions?  No?  All right.  Thank you very much.


Okay.  Can we have Dr. Tim Fong, psychiatrist, UCLA Gambling Studies Program; and Ms. Adrian Marco, researcher, UCLA Gambling Studies Program?


DR. TIMOTHY FONG:  Good morning.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dr. Fong, thanks for joining us.


DR. FONG:  Thank you for having me and thank you for inviting me and…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is Ms. Marco going to join you in a moment, or are you doing the presentation?


DR. FONG:  I’ll do the presentation.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.


DR. FONG:  Adrian’s over there.  You want to raise your hand?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.


DR. FONG:  Okay.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I had some specific questions for you.  No.  I’m kidding you.  (Laughter0


DR. FONG:  What’s it like working for him?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  (Laughter)  So thanks for joining us.


DR. FONG:  Thank you for having me, Chairman Florez.


My name is Dr. Timothy Fong.  I’m an addiction psychiatrist.  My official title is the co-director of the UCLA Gambling Studies Program.  Our program at UCLA is primarily a research program that focuses on understanding the neurobiological causes of pathological gambling, but we also provide treatment of a clinic to help pathological gamblers.  A number of our other research studies are looking at understanding what treatments are most effective for pathological gambling.


Before I get into my testimony, I just want to share a story about how I got into this field.  I grew up in Chicago.  I grew up in a family of gamblers.  My great-grandfather was a pathological gambler.  Gambling is in my blood and it is genetically driven.  And when I chose to go into psychiatry, and specifically addiction psychiatry, my dad’s like, you know, that’s interesting.  I think that’s a good field for you to go into.  But when I told him I wanted to go and to study the field of gambling, he got very angry.


He said, “Why do you want to waste your time on that behavior?”


And it was very clear to me that my father, a Ph.D. in pharmacology, still saw gambling as a moral issue, as an issue of self-control, as an issue of greed.  And this was 1998, and that’s what part of what led me to go into the field of gambling.  There’s other areas of really interest of me, particularly to understand what are the differences between pathological gambling, social gambling, and problem gambling. 


In coming to California from Chicago, I was amazed in 1998, that I was right at the ascension of all this legalized gambling in the State of California.  And when I looked at state-funded services or research, I didn’t find any.  I was stunned.  But I was even more stunned to realize that a whole slough of academic folks like myself were not studying this issue.  And to me, that was the biggest part.  I said, we need a bigger call for action, for more academic types, not only for medicine, mental health fields, but economics, sociology to really understand gambling.

So with that background, basically my testimony has four key points I’d like the committee to take away with, and then I want to address some of those questions you asked in the opening statements.  But even before that, I really want to ask you guys if anyone ever is in Los Angeles or University of California wants to stop by and visit our program, have lunch, or talk about gambling in a more intimate setting, I’d be more than happy to do that.  And I’m also very hopeful that this is our beginning of a relationship together.  And if it pleases the committee to have me back several times, I’d be more than happy to come up and travel, so I’m glad to see that this relationship is starting.

My four key points are really simple.

Number one, pathological gambling is a brain disease.  It’s like substance abuse.  It’s like diabetes; it’s like cancer; it’s like heart disease.  There are genetic predispositions; there’s a biological predisposition; there’s social factors; and there’s psychological reasons why someone develops a pathological gambling problem.  One of the sayings I say to patients is, although many of us can gamble compulsively, only a few percent of us can become compulsive or pathological gamblers.  People are very different in the sense of that their brains are not functioning 100 percent.  What we don’t know as yet, What about problem gambling?  Do problem gamblers have the same level of biochemical, neurobiological dysfunction as pathological gamblers?  We don’t know that.  Research really needs to tell us that.


My second point is that treatment of pathological gamblers works.  We know, despite the absence of state-funded treatment, despite the absence of large backbone of infrastructures of treatment, that when pathological gamblers come to treatment, when they go to G.A., when they come to my treatment clinic, when they go to Sun Yo Pak’s ?? clinic in San Diego, when they go to Niko’s ?? in San Francisco, they get better.  They’re able to reduce gambling, be able to stop gambling meaningfully.  One of the comparisons I make too is diabetes, asthma, heart disease, and obesity—these are other chronic medical illnesses.  And yet we take one look around, wherever we go in America or here in California, what do we see?  We see people who are overweight, who are not taking their medicines, who are not following the direction of the physicians.  And I’d highlight that that’s also true with all forms of addictive disorders and mental health disorders.  But gambling and substance abuse have been stigmatize to say, oh, these folks don’t want to get better or that they can’t get better.  But why should we waste taxpayer dollars on these folks?  My point is that these are chronic medical diseases that require interventions at every level to work.  So we know that treatment works.


Number 3, we know that treatment is not readily available here in California.  I routinely get about seven to ten calls per week from patients or families looking for help.  Unfortunately, I have to turn away about five of those calls.  Those folks don’t have money; they don’t have health insurance to see me at UCLA.  So I’ll get to it a little bit later about what type of services are available.  But the bottom line is—and I encourage every one of you to try this—call the gambling helpline; call up your insurance provider and say, hey, I have a gambling problem.  What can you do for me, or what do you have available for me?  And you’ll find many roadblocks, many obstacles.  Just last week, I spent about 20 minutes working with a lady who did not have insurance, who could barely speak English, who only spoke Chinese, and she lived in Monterey Park.  But I told her, well, there’s no state-funded treatment for gambling.  It’s hard to find a Gamblers Anonymous meeting in Chinese.  I said there are Asian/Pacific mental health clinics, but they are all the way to Korea Town in LA, so the drive is a little bit long for you.  So these are some of the barriers we’re facing with treatment.


The fourth key point I want to emphasize is what goes into treatment planning over the next year, two years, five years.  One of my emphasize I’d really like to highlight for you is that any treatment planning that this committee does or that the state does has to be done using a combination of integrated services.  It has to be based on science.  You can’t just do this on a myth or what you think is going to work.  I’d really like to see you do it based on what you know works, and there is research out there.  My personal belief is that this is a shared responsibility, in the casinos, from the governments, to the individuals, to families, to mental health practitioners.  You know, I do a lot of public speaking and a lot of working with industry and working with clients, and what really gets me frustrated is when folks start blaming one another.  And I think this is an example where we have a legalized behavior where we can have all the stakeholders in one room, like we do today, and really come to a commonality of sharing the responsibility to get folks better and prevent folks from developing addiction.  One of the things I would applaud the gaming industry or the gambling industry is that this isn’t like Big Tobacco where they hid the fact that folks can become addicted.  They’re upfront.  They say, we know that folks can become pathological gamblers and we don’t want to see that happen, not because it’s “bad for business” but because it’s the wrong thing.


So those are my four key points:  pathological gambling is a brain disease, treatment works for the pathological gambler, treatment is not yet available in the system that I’d like to see and hear in California, that any treatment planning must be done with an integrated-services approach and with a shared responsibility.


I want to address some of your questions brought up in your opening statement, what type of services are available for pathological gamblers right now.  Well, again, we have gambling helplines 24 hours a day that, if you call, it provides some emergency crisis intervention.  Usually what they’ll do, they’ll refer folks to Gamblers Anonymous meetings and/or certified gambling treatment counselors.  Now here in California, we have probably—I forget the number—but we probably have less than 15 “gambling” certified counselors who have gone through training as provided by the California Council on Problem Gambling to actually…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m sorry.  I missed that last one.  How many?


DR. FONG:  Probably less than 15 certified counselors who are certified in treating pathological gambling.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Fifteen.


DR. FONG:  Fifteen.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In the whole state?


DR. FONG:  In the whole state.  But…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you know all 15?


DR. FONG:  I’ve met all 15, yes.  I personally, myself, am not certified, but I have a board certification in addiction psychiatry.  Now I’ll get to it a little bit later why I don’t go through the certification process.  That’s an important thing I want to get back to, but that doesn’t mean there aren’t providers out there.  DMH providers—I’ll call them drug treatment providers, psychiatrists, private practitioners, family practice physicians, internal medicine—they’re out there.  They just don’t have the training or the experience, and I think it’s really critical to understand that.  If you have health insurance, your health insurance will provide mental health care; but again, that mental healthcare provider probably does not have any experience in treating pathological gambling.

I went to psychiatry residency at UCLA, arguably one of the better psychiatry residency programs around.  We had zero lectures on how to treat pathological gambling until I became faculty there.  If you go to USC, you go to UCSF, UCSD, Loma Linda are wonderful medical institutions here in the State of California, same thing—medical schools are not getting trained about how to treat pathological gamblers.


There are some, what we call, out-of-pocket residential treatment programs.  For instance, there’s programs in Malibu.  I’m aware of several programs in San Diego and Los Angeles for pathological gamblers, but they’re not what I would call dedicated treatment programs.  For instance, Pasadena Recovery Center in Pasadena primarily treats substance-abuse patients but they also have a gambling track.  But it’s kind of like, can you just throw in pathological gamblers with substance abuse and expect the same outcomes?  Maybe or maybe not.  So we have Gamblers Anonymous that’s available statewide.  We have state-funded programs that don’t get reimbursed if the diagnosis is just pathological gambling.   We have private practitioners where gamblers who don’t have insurance or ability to pay cannot access, and we have residential treatment programs.


One of the things that I think that is really critical with all treatment is being able to document that treatment works.  I know that the State of California spends over $200 million for alcohol and drug treatment programs.  One of my frustrations as a clinician is, I want to see how effective are these treatment programs, how good are they?  Because I think there’s an accountability from those programs to show that they actually, one, have the appropriate people who can deliver services and, two, are actually able to make an impact on the condition as well.  So those are the kind of types of services available.  Obviously, there’s a lot more—it’s just an umbrella picture of what’s available for folks currently right now.


One of the questions you then ask is, What about the question of funding?  What services should be available for that?  Obviously, I’m not a politician; I’m not a businessman.  I’m a physician.  I’m a clinician and I’m a researcher.  But my take on it, I’ll give you an example of what happens in other states.  Exemplary gambling treatment programs exist in the states of Oregon, Minnesota, Iowa, Connecticut.  These are all much smaller states than ours here in California.  For instance, Oregon gets about $2 (million) or $3 million per year for gambling treatment services, Minnesota also $3 million for gambling treatment services.  Their source of funds for that is unclaimed lottery tickets.  It’s written in the legislation.  The State of Minnesota is obviously much smaller.  Based on my own calculations, I’ve estimated that the State of California to be equivalent to some of those smaller states but need anywhere between $30 (million) to $150 million dedicated just for pathological gambling treatment to be on the same level as those other smaller states.

So when people ask me, Well, who should pay for treatment?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What was the amount again?


DR. FONG:  What’s that?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What was the amount again that you estimated?


DR. FONG:  My gross estimate is somewhere between $30 (million) to $150 million that the State of California needs to put out to be equivalent to these exemplary treatment programs in other state-funded treatment programs.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


DR. FONG:  Where will those dollars come from?  I’m a citizen, like yourself as well.  I don’t want to see my taxes go up.  I don’t want to see programs that aren’t effective.  But my belief again is that—this is my personal belief and I really want to emphasize that—shared responsibility.  I see the Lottery, horseracing, commercial card clubs, Native American casinos, and State of California itself all paying the shared responsibility into that.  How would that work?  You know, that’s where you guys need to work out the details.  To me, an equitable thing would be 1 or 1.5 percent of gross revenues of each gambling establishment, whether it be commerce or Hawaiian Gardens or Pachanga or the Lottery, something that’s fair, you know, something so that industry can’t say, well, we’re causing more.  You should owe more.  It’s just something across the board.  Again, just basic numbers that I’m throwing out there.


The question then is, How do we get gambling people to treatment?  If you build an amazing treatment program but people don’t show up, is that an effective use of dollars?  I think this is really where the work of the Office of Problem Gambling comes in—prevention, education, and visibility.  Many of the gamblers who I talked to who are not willing to come into treatment, it’s not because they don’t want to get help but they see themselves as flawed in the sense of morally.  They seems themselves not as having a disease but that they just basically “screwed over” everyone else or why should anyone are about them.  There’s a tremendous sense of loss, shame.  It’s stigma that pathological gamblers and their families are caring about.  I think that if patients like that were more aware of treatment programs and realize that they can get help, that help is available, that we’re going to see more patients come to treatment.


You can look at the same, any other chronic disease, in terms of substance abuse or diabetes.  The majority of folks with those diseases aren’t going to treatment.  Now who’s responsibility is that?  Is it the state’s or is it the individual?  I think it’s again a shared responsibility, and we struggled for a long time to try and get folks to come into treatment for just depression.  We haven’t found those answers.  I think we have a lot to learn from Departments of Mental Health and Alcohol and Drug Programs over what to do.  So let me hold on that because I really wanted to use my time up here to answer your questions about this issue and about some of the things going on in the state right now.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you.  Very good presentation.


Let me start.  You’ve been using the word gamblers in a broad sense, and I think I asked the prior witness, at the end of the day, at-risk gamblers or pathological gamblers, what should we be focusing our attention to?  Are they distinct?  Are they all in one?  Should there be different treatment levels?  Should the office that’s responsible for this segment, those types of gamblers, if you will, various types of intervention?  Just your thoughts on that.


DR. FONG:  Right.  So again, just to be very clear, we see gambling behavior on a spectrum of continuity.  Social gambling is engaged in about 85 to 90 percent of Americans and Californians where gambling really doesn’t have a meaningful impact.  At-risk/problem gambling I put at a second level where gambling started to impact their life but yet hasn’t yet destroyed their lives.  Again, the third level of pathological gambling being a distinct psychiatric disorder.  My belief is that treatment really should focus on all three levels.

One of the things we don’t know very well yet is what happens—for instance, we’ll take the California Prevalence Study right now.  For those folks who scored at risk, we don’t know how many percent of those folks will develop a problem or pathological gambling problem over the next five or ten  years.  We also don’t know how many folks with problem or pathological gambling right now will naturally recover and go back to becoming “social gamblers”.  So I really would emphasize what we call comprehensive step-care approach where you have levels of intervention and prevention all the way from the person who demonstrate at-risk behavior even before they gamble all the way to the pathological gambler who’s gone through a lot of treatment programs which failed treatment, who hasn’t responded to a standard treatment program.  So really, when you ask them that question, I really emphasize, it really needs to be at every level, from the social gambler, to at-risk gambler, problem gambler, and pathological gambler.  The question is, Where do you sink most of our money into?  That’s debate.  You know, if you want to say, we want to emphasize prevention, when you put it all into the prevention targets at interventions of the at-risk or the early-problem gambler.  But I think there’s a mistake there of trying to figure out where should we put it all in when we just don’t have the research to back it up.

Dr. Simmons mentioned that pathological gambling is probably a $1 billion economic burden to California.  I think that’s an underestimate.  Why?  Because pathological gambling is a hidden disease.  When somebody kills themselves, their death certificate does not say pathological gambling.  When somebody takes an overdose of drugs and alcohol but it’s driven by a gambling debt, the cause of death in my mind is an untreated pathological gambling disorder.  It is not drug and alcohol overdose which is what is listed on the coroner’s certificate.  You can’t trace pathological gambling because you can’t really taste it, see it, or feel it.  Bruce is going to talk more about, you know, what it’s like to go through that and their families. But I really want to emphasize that the state—we don’t have mechanisms of determining when pathological gambling is affecting our systems.  In other words, we’re not watching our emergency room; we’re not watching the financial institutions; we’re not watching domestic violence.  So it’s hard to monitor those things.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’ve had some discussion in the literature that the committee had prepared for this hearing about, rates on natural recovery.  Where does that fit into your spectrum that you’ve just mentioned?


DR. FONG:  Well, natural recovery is a phenomenon we see in all mental health disorders, and the majority of folks with substance-abuse disorders are actually are “natural recovery”.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  For this addiction, gambling addiction, where does natural recovery fall?  You’ve seen it?


DR. FONG:  Yes.  Oh, absolutely.  I think it would fall into primarily folks who I see who develop some problems related to gambling, so mainly problem gambling, and then for whatever reason, are able to revert back to social gambling.  I’ll say this on record:  I have never seen a pathological gambler who met criteria for the disorder be able to revert back to “social gambling”.  Again, I think that highlights there’s a very clear line in the distinction that I make between problem gambling and pathological gambling.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So would you say the majority of dollars should go to prevention before we hit that category?


DR. FONG:  At this point, I would say the majority of dollars should go to prevention and early intervention, but I think you should also focus on the extremes.  I think the other majority needs to go on the subset of pathological gamblers that are costing the state and themselves and their families the most damage.  So really, I’d highlight the extremes to the folks who are most likely to develop the disorder and the folks who have this disorder right now.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how do you get to or have a study, or one of the studies showed, to actually get someone to change their behavior—I think it was a high rate—71 percent—of those in the study said that they were aware or considered themselves a problem or pathological gamblers, and they knew about Gamblers Anonymous—71 percent of them knew about it, but only 7 percent actually went.  So how do we get from 71 percent saying, I know I have a problem; I know Gamblers Anonymous is available, but only 7 percent of them actually in essence go to a meeting?  I mean, that’s a huge drop off.  What would you suggest?


DR. FONG:  You know, that’s the fundamental question of human behavior we’ve been trying to answer for years.  The same thing with obesity.  Lots of people know they’re overweight, but how do we get them to change their lifestyle?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.


DR. FONG:  I mean, one of the things I’d emphasize—what we’re trying to do at our research program—is understand better ways to motivate individuals, understand what’s going on in those folks’ brain and maybe we can come up with different ways.  One of the things I’d emphasize too is that we won’t be able to know unless we have programs out there that are creative and that are innovative.  If we just do the same thing that people have been doing for years, we know we’re going to make the same mistakes.  So what I would like to see, for instance—you know, I have a vision of state-funded treatment being administered by Office of Problem Gambling but being handled at the local level by clinicians and researchers who know this disease well.  So in other words, kind of like, imagine if you would, like three treatment model programs in San Francisco, L.A., and San Diego where these treatment programs can be creative.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You forgot Bakersfield.  (Laughter)

DR. FONG:  And Bakersfield, right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  Okay.  Go ahead.


DR. FONG:  Yes, where these treatment programs would be creative and have freedom to operate it and try, you know, some new research programs, try some new, innovative programs and be accountable for whether they work or don’t work.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me ask you, if I could, so you have a vision of a shared responsibility that goes well into the training so that mental health officials, folks in emergency rooms, others are able to detect what they can consider an addiction due to gambling.


DR. FONG:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So in other words, it’s very deep in our system?


DR. FONG:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And we’re very clear what that is when it comes to alcohol abuse, from your vantage point, particularly when it’s compared to this particular disease, shall we call it, correct?


DR. FONG:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  What would you say ultimately—and I do know we have some questions from other members as well.  Let me get through a couple of these.  When you talk about the science, we have to have a good science—we hear that a lot around this building quite a bit—what is the good science?  Who should pay for it?  And should this office commission to have $6 million and we use $3 million, and who knows where the other $3 million went.  I mean, could that had gone to the science necessary to get us the better answers?


DR. FONG:  Well…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I know researchers never want money, premise that.


DR. FONG:  Yes.  I think my basic premise, I’m a very simple, pragmatic physician/researcher.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.


DR. FONG:  Part of my problem that I see with a lot of research is that, as wonderful as it is in terms of intellectual and purism and controlled data, it’s useless in my mind if, one, researchers can’t tell a community what it really means or, two, if it really doesn’t help the clinicians to understand their patients better.  So I think there’s been a split between research and clinicians there.  Who I think should pay for research, again, research should be a shared responsibility.  It should be a mix of public and private funds.  It should not be exclusively public; it should not be exclusively private.

For instance, I’m aware of a research program in Boston out of Harvard that’s done some very, very good work, but they’re 100 percent financed by the casino industry.  As a result, their findings get skewered by the community, even though their research is topnotch in terms of controlled data or quality control, but I think a lot of it’s perception.  My belief is that the state—and you guys are the state—I think the state should put a little bit into research, a little bit into treatment, a little bit into prevention, but a lot into visibility and accountability.  I can’t tell you how often I see waste at a lot of different levels and it bothers me.  It bothers me that we don’t have enough accountability.  It bothers me, as a physician, no one asks, How good is Dr. Fong?  What is his responsibility?  What is his level of training?  What is his level of outcome from the patients he sees?  It bothers me that way, and I really want to see more accountability of all the different levels from research, treatment, prevention, and education.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  We’ll tell Senator Kuehl you want to come before her health committee and answer all those questions because I think you’re right.  We don’t do enough accountability, particularly oversight, at this level, and I think today is maybe the start of that.  It’s important.


One last question.  Senator Wiggins has a question and I’m sure others do.  You know, most of the studies that I’ve read in preparation for this hearing talk about—you’ve talked a lot about the genetic aspect of this.  And yet, most of the studies say, you know, male, Hispanic, African American, never married, disabled, Asian American, you know, all of those somehow have a tendency to fall into a category.  Now how do genetics fit in with whole categories of folks?  You’re not kind of tying the genetics to any of these racial groups.  I know you wouldn’t do that, and yet we have, you know, quite a few of these subcategories, highly prevalent, as you’ve mentioned, you know, in these categories.  So is it really genetics or is it location?  Is it the fact that it’s the Lottery and entry into this?  Is it the fact that more liquor stores are located in these particular areas have more Lottery machines, so therefore more people have entry to this?  I mean, give me your perspective of the big picture on the genetics, the sub-categories, the locational aspects of gambling, and ultimately the Lottery.  Those are all big things but tie it together for me.

DR. FONG:  Okay.  My belief, and the evidence points to pathological gambling, the cause of it is about 30 percent genetic and about 70 percent environment.  That’s not definitive, but that’s based on what we’re seeing.  What exactly is transmitted genetically, we don’t know.  For instance, well, I’ll share with you a story, and I have patients who tell me, Doc, the first time I gambled, I knew I was going to be doing this for the rest of my life.  It sounds very much like what we hear from alcoholics or both with OPO ?? dependency—the first time I used heroine, I knew this was going to be around.  So there’s a genetic predisposition in terms of wanting to gamble more or wanting to gamble again.  There may also be genetic predispositions of not being able to control or be able to stop or be able to put the breaks on the behaviors.  But you’re right.  The larger component is really the environment.  My belief is that if you create an environment that has more access to gambling, you’re going to expose those who are genetically vulnerable to develop that addiction.  It’s simple logic.  You know, if there were no casinos or no Lottery, there’s nothing else, there would be no “gambling disease.”  But those folks would still be genetically predisposed to develop some behavior that would cause problems for them.


I always think about, for instance, with the caveman, they didn’t gamble.  So what happened with these cavemen who had these same genetic problems, they probably either got killed off very early or they took unwanted risk and fell out of a tree, broke their neck, but there’s still something healthy that was transmitted because it still exists in our genome today.  So one of the things we’re trying to figure out is, in the pathological gamblers, the genetic risks that’s transmitted, what’s transmitted that’s not only healthy about it but what’s transmitted that’s unhealthy.  So I point to the environment, and we see the expansion of gambling and availability of gambling anywhere.  But there is one area that we can’t control yet, and that’s the internet.  And no matter how many lotteries or slot machines or casinos you put up, it’s going to dwarf the internet.  It’s going to dwarf mobile technology where I’ve seen figures and the it’s ten years of $16 billion in revenue from mobile technology which is not regulated by the State of California.  So I think a very clear question is:  If the state is going to be in the business of putting in state-sponsored gambling, how much do they need to put back for its citizens, to protect its citizens who are genetically vulnerable?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


Senator Wiggins, do you have a question?

SENATOR PAT WIGGINS:  Actually, Dr. Fong, I was going to ask you about the internet gambling, and it’s very private and quiet and personal.  And I guess is that becoming a really big source of gambling?  You say it’s not regulated by California.  So it’s offshore often?

DR. FONG:  In our UCLA treatment clinic, probably about 40 percent of our clients, their primary form of gambling is internet gambling.  I’ve seen someone as young as 12 years old and someone as old as 90.  So it cuts across everything because of its availability and the ease of which you can go online and be gambling within a matter of seconds.  But it’s a real struggle because it’s not regulated by the federal government.  You know, they passed that bill back in January, but how are they going to enforce that?  How are you going to break into people’s homes and tell them not to gamble?  So, you know, it’s a real concern because we don’t know, you know, how to address that issue.  And my belief is that the internet pathological gambler carries some differences biologically and psychologically than, say, casino pathological gamblers or Lottery pathological gamblers.  It’s a real challenge.

I just came back from a conference in Sweden where they took the opposite approach.  They said, you know, what?  We’re going to regulate this.  We’re going to have state-sponsored internet gambling; we’re going to control it; we’re going to know exactly how much people are spending; and we’re going to have state-funded treatment there.  It’s a very different way of doing things than what we do here in America or here in California.  It’s a very, very real issue.  The United States generates, I think, the last figure I saw, between $6 (billion) to $8 billion a year in internet wagering.  America is the number one country in the world for revenues for internet wagering.  Is that because we have the most number of computers?  No.  Because we have, I would argue, one of the largest appetites for gambling.


SEANTOR LELAND YEE:  Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.


Dr. Fong, if you could tell me, in your treatment of pathological gamblers, what’s the treatment regiment—how many sessions we’re talking about, just kind of briefly go over…

DR. FONG:  Okay.


SENATOR YEE:  What exactly do you do with these individuals?


DR. FONG:  Sure.  So at UCLA, the primary treatment is mainly seeing myself kind of a private-practice models.  When I see patients for the first time, I meet with them for an hour, and then I lay out a treatment plan that makes sense to them of what they need.  Usually I’ll see patients individually once a week for about six to eight weeks.  I also recommend that they go G.A. at a minimum of two or three times a week.  I’ll also prescribe psychiatric medication to take care of whether it be the gambling disorder or the co-occurring substance abuse or mental health disorder.  I also have family meetings with the gambler to corroborate the story to get more history.   So it’s really an individualized treatment plan.  But for the most part, it’s about six to eight weekly sessions followed by one session every two weeks or every four weeks coinciding with Gamblers Anonymous.  But for those folks who I don’t do individual therapy, I’ll see them once a month for medications, and I’ll ask that they see an individual therapist for once a week.  But one of the critical components is really working with the families.  And that takes a lot; it takes a lot for providers to have the families come in because a lot of times they don’t get reimbursed for that but I think it’s really critical.  So that kind of gives you a snapshot of what we do at UCLA.


SENATOR YEE:  And what kind of DSM diagnosis do you give to those individuals?


DR. FONG:  They get a DSM diagnosis of pathological gambling.  They also get most, about 80 percent of my clients have another co-occurring psychiatric disorder.  And there are times—I’ll be honest—I’ll put this on record.  I lie at folks who have a primary gambling disorder but no co-occurring disorder.  I will put an adjustment disorder of depression in order to get paid or in order for the gambler to have their insurance services covered because if I put just a diagnosis of pathological gambling, insurance will not cover that, Medi-Cal will not cover that, Medicare will not cover that, and ADP will not cover that.  And then what happens is that it actually ends up being worse for the patient because they get stuck with a huge bill which in turn ruins their credit even more. 


SENATOR YEE:  And when you say what kinds or that there are few state-funded services, I guess what you’re really saying is that there are very few designated gambling treatment because if I’m a problem gambler and I have some difficulties and ultimately I need to get help, if I don’t have, let’s say, private insurance or something along those lines, I’d get probably referred to my mental health center.


DR. FONG:  Absolutely.


SENATOR YEE:  And that’s where I would get my treatment.


DR. FONG:  Right.  And that’s where they go right now.  But let me give you an example of what happened.  I had a patient like that who I referred to who also had a co-occurring alcohol problem.  So I referred that client to an alcohol drug program.

And I said to them, “You know what?  Call me back in a couple of months.  Just let me know how you’re doing.  Call me back.

I said, “What did they do for you for treatment for your gambling?”

And this is what he said, he said, “They told me to stop drinking and to come up with another hobby.  And they said to me, ‘Why don’t you consider gambling?’”

But that’s an example where the alcohol or drug treatment provider just didn’t know, you know, about gambling, just didn’t know about the effects of saying that.  I’m not pointing fingers, but I’m highlighting that folks in the alcohol or drug treatment at DMH, they don’t have the training because they were never trained.  They don’t have the ability, right now, as of today, to really treat gamblers at the same level as a specialist.  I firmly believe, that if they can get up to speed very, very quickly.  They don’t need a long two-, three-year period of training.  They just need a couple, in my mind, probably less than a week of training, to get the basics.  But what they really need is a backbone of supervisors or resources that they can call on to say, hey, I have trouble with this patient; I don’t know what to do; what would you do?  So that’s why I really emphasize in kind of a multi-modal approach to treatment.

SENATOR YEE:  You know, my comment, I think, goes to something that the chair mentioned, and that is, that this issue is prevalent throughout the state.  And rather than to have sort of specialty clinics in certain areas, it seems to me that it’s part and parcel of mental health professionals training to make differential diagnosis about different kinds of problems that come with particular patients so that really it doesn’t matter if you’re in San Francisco or Bakersfield or Fresno or Eureka that you have individuals within our mental health system prepare to deal with the diversity of whatever the problems may be within a patient when he walks in there.
DR. FONG:  Yes.  I agree with you wholeheartedly.  One of the curious things of when I go up and talk to DMH providers, they say, this is an issue that alcohol and drug programs should deal with.  We’re too busy.  When I go to alcohol or drug treatment programs to talk about gambling, they say, you know what?  This is a DMH issue.  This is a mental health issue.  We’re too busy.  And so community mental health providers are stretched to the max in terms of patients.  There’s waiting lists and the last thing many of them want to see is more training, more things to have to do, more bureaucracy.  But my emphasis to them is that, if you don’t screen for these things, for gambling, you don’t ask those questions, your patients may not be getting better from their depression or an anxiety.  It may very well be that their alcohol or drug problem is being driven by a gambling disorder that you didn’t screen for.  So there’s obviously a lot more I want to say on that, but I really want to emphasize, you’re absolutely right.  That would be the vision to have a couple of specialty treatment centers that are very, very lost but the majority of treatment being provided by DMH providers and alcohol and drug treatment programs throughout the state.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  Appreciate it.  Great testimony.  I will strike that part about lying to the insurance thing off the record at some point in time.  (Laughter)

Let’s, if we could, have Steve Hedrick, director, State Office of Problem Gambling.  Thanks for joining us.

MR. STEVE HEDRICK:  Thank you.  Good morning, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Good morning.

MR. HEDRICK:  Hello?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I have questions.  I don’t know if you have the testimony but I’d like them maybe answered.
Threshold question:  Do you have enough money?

MR. HEDRICK:  We have enough money to do what we’re doing.  Legislation had authorized our office.  It really gives us pretty clear direction on what we’re working on, and that really is prevention, virtually targets those at-risk people you were talking about.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Prevention.  Okay.  So we have nearly, at least in studies that we’ve seen or estimates, of a million problem gamblers in the State of California, we have $3 million in your budget.  So not doing the math real fast this morning, but $3 per problem gambler, something of that sort in this state.  It’s between 2.2 (million) and 2.7 million at-risk gamblers, between 500(000) and 713,000 problem gamblers, and pathological gamblers between 296,000 and 490,000.  So I mean, how in the world will we have the $3 million be enough to do what you have to do?  So are you saying the legislature has been lax at telling you what to do because, if we are, then would be that time to tell us what we ought to be doing in terms of getting your office better funded, better prepared, given the testimony you heard today.  This would be that magic moment.  So what is it?  What is it that we need to do?

MR. HEDRICK:  I can tell you what we’ve been doing.  It would probably be the best ____ at this point.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The governor’s not going to let you; the Department of Finance is listening.  Okay.  I’ve got it.  But tell us what you’ve been doing and then we’ll figure out what you need to do.

MR. HEDRICK:  All right.  Actually the legislature did give us pretty good direction on what we were going to do in prevention.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.  You’ve got it.

MR. HEDRICK:  Obviously, like you’d pointed out, we got $3 million.  We have three full-time staff.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, first of all, you had $6 million at some point in time.  So you had $6 million in ’96.  Before your office was reorganized, it was a $6 million allocation made for this issue and $3 million ended up with the new office, and the question is, What happened to the other $3 million?

MR. HEDRICK:  The office originally was the Office of Compulsive Gambling in the Department of Mental Health.  I can’t speak to what went on before we came over to our office.  I’d been there about a year and a half.  We receive approximately $3 million a year from the initial tribal gaming compacts.  And the first year, most of that money did revert.  That’s pretty common knowledge.  Some of the first phone calls I got when I took this job was make sure you use the money.  That was from the people in the field primarily.

One of the things we’ve done is, if we were building a house, we don’t even have a foundation.  We’re still digging trenches and we realize that.  So what we’re focused on is a good direction we did get from the legislature and the funds and resources we do have.  We’ve worked very hard to build partnerships with the California Council on Problem Gambling, UCLA’s Problem Gambling Studies Program, the Asian/Pacific Islander Problem Gambling Task Force.  One of the things that we did that I think that has worked out very well is, we appointed an advisory group which includes people from the industry as well as regulatory agencies and advocates and researchers, and those folks have all helped us to work and look at ways of addressing this.  I know you’ve got a copy of our statewide plan that was based very closely on the legislation.

What the legislation tells us we need to do is to develop help lines.  We have a statewide help line.  Somebody calling on that help line would actually talk a master’s level counselor who does have some training in problem…
SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s the helpline?

MR. HEDRICK:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And that’s our major focus?

MR. HEDRICK:  That’s one of the focuses.  I can go through, if you’d like.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  What’s the helpline’s number?

MR. HEDRICK:  It’s 1-800-GAMBLER.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Uh-huh.  And how long has it been in existence?

MR. HEDRICK:  I don’t know of the total length it’s been in existence.  We’ve been funding it for—this is the second or third year or so we’ve been funding it.  It’s actually administered by the California Council on Problem Gambling.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the California Council on Problem Gambling estimated it would cost $280 million to offer most of the state’s adult problem pathological gamblers a six-week intensive course.  So this is the same council that says we have a $280 million, from their vantage point, solution, and do you agree with that assessment?

MR. HEDRICK:  I don’t know.  I can tell you what the Prevalence Study says, that an initial ramp-up, we’d probably have between 9(000) and 14,000 people that would be willing and ready to go into treatment.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  …giving you the California Council—

MR. HEDRICK:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  --of Problem Gambling, and that was back in ’98 when it said it would cost us $280 million, and you have a $3 million budget and you were just saying that the helpline is run by or offered by the same council, correct?

MR. HEDRICK:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you have a council that you like when it comes to that, but do you not agree with their assessment for $280 million?  Budget ought to be higher?  That’s not you saying it.  That’s…
MR. HEDRICK:  No.  I understand.  I’m just telling you, according to the study, initially, there would between 9(000) and 14,000 people that would be willing to go to treatment.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does your office interact with the various industries?  You mentioned that you have a council of folks.  Who’s on your council?

MR. HEDRICK:  The Tribal Alliance for Sovereign Indian Nations, the California Nations Indian Gaming Association, the California Tribal Business Association, the California Gaming Association, which are card rooms.  We also have representatives from the California Horseracing Board, the Lottery, the California Gaming Commission, as well as Nelson Rose who’s a legal expert…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how long does this council meet?

MR. HEDRICK:  We most recently met about a year—excuse me—about a month ago.  We’ve met…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  A month ago?

MR. HEDRICK:  Yes.  Last year and a half, we met four or five times.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So that could mean—okay.  You met a month ago.  When was the meeting before it?

MR. HEDRICK:  Right.  Before that, it was a year.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So if we met a year, and a month ago would be—what would be the purpose of that meeting?  Why was that meeting organized?

MR. HEDRICK:  Originally it was organized to release the Prevalence Study which was not approved for release yet.  So what we did is we filled them in on the different activities of the office.  We had different contractors and people come in to talk to.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What was the nature of the public study that’s not yet released?

MR. HEDRICK:  It is released now.  It’s the Prevalence Study.  I believe you have a copy of it, yes.  It was released the week after the meeting.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So a week after the meeting, it was released.  Prior to that, they hadn’t met in a year.  So why wouldn’t it meet more often?

MR. HEDRICK:  We had met four times within about four months the year before, and the primary reason for that was to develop the statewide plan.  And quite honestly, it’s just one of those things where we didn’t get back to meeting with them again until we were getting ready to release the Prevalence Study.  We had hoped to do that as early as the fall, but it didn’t work out that way.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And did you have an opportunity to hear the first witness talk about CHRB, for example, or the lotteries, very, very nine-point, small print, if not hidden, state-sponsored websites that actually have gateways to gambling?  Do you talk about that at your council, that maybe you ought to have better ways to deal with your number?  Your number is not listed on, at least the problem gambling issue doesn’t seem to be very prevalent on any of those websites.

MR. HEDRICK:  I know that we have some—I know that the Gambling Control Commission and the Division of Gambling Control and the Department of Justice do link to us.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, not to you.  I’m talking about on their websites specifically.

MR. HEDRICK:  No.  I mean, on their websites.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  For example, the Lottery, where is that?  Can you hand this, please?  Can I see your copy of this?  That’s the Lottery’s website.

MR. HEDRICK:  Okay.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Tell me where I engage with your office on this website.

MR. HEDRICK:  I don’t see that on this one.  I see a link for Responsible Gambling.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So you don’t see it, correct?  I couldn’t see it.  And the question is, you have a council; you interact with each other.  I mean, if you have a hotline or would you want to make sure it’s somewhat prevalent on this website?

MR. HEDRICK:  I believe that the Lottery has their own helpline that they fund.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Looking at this, does this look sufficient to you to get your—we’d give you $3 million to at least get your number out?  Does that look sufficient to you?  It can be your opinion, is fine.

MR. HEDRICK:  We’d like to have our number out there.  There’s no doubt about it.  I would like to point out the Lottery has been helpful to us.  They translated some materials for us.  They put the materials out their venues, the 19,000 venues in the state.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Got it.  Does this look as though, from your vantage point, you would have a visible presence on the Lottery?

MR. HEDRICK:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  For at least 80 percent of people enter into the gaming world through the Lottery, at least according to the two studies we have here?
MR. HEDRICK:  I don’t see it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You don’t see it?  Okay.  Do you think you might ask your council the next time you meet?

MR. HEDRICK:  Yes, I will.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And will that be…

MR. HEDRICK:  I’ll actually ask them before we meet.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Let’s go to the CHRB website, next page, and that’s a little convoluted because of the printing.  But where would we find reference to your organization there?

MR. HEDRICK:  I’m not seeing it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You do see Youbet.com, though, correct?

MR. HEDRICK:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So it is a portal directly to, if you will, a private company that offers gaming?

MR. HEDRICK:  Yes.  I don’t know.  I don’t know much about…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does your council have the ability to say, this is a state-sponsored website?  Maybe it shouldn’t be on it?

MR. HEDRICK:  Well, we’re not a regulatory—we don’t have any control over the other agencies, no.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you think that’s appropriate?  You run the office with problem gambling?

MR. HEDRICK:  I don’t know the horseracing voters in relationship with Youbet, so  I don’t know if they have contracts with them or how that works.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  From your vantage point as a director, do you think that’s appropriate?  You run the Office of Problem Gambling.
MR. HEDRICK:  I honestly don’t know.  I think there’s more information I’d like to have before I answer that question.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  All right.  When do you think you can tell us what you think about that?

MR. HEDRICK:  I’d have to talk to the horseracing board and find out the reasons for it.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s do that because I kind of would like to get your perspective.  You are the Office of Problem Gambling, correct?
MR. HEDRICK:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me ask you a question on the issues of the funding that have been mentioned.  Three model states—Las Vegas—who have now surpassed, they have their gambling, problem gambling, embedded actually in statute and we throughout the industries—I mean, does our California law at this point in time, is it sufficient enough to give you the funding necessary to move in these directions that our doctor from UCLA mentioned or even our first witness?

MR. HEDRICK:  Our law at this time tells us to develop a treatment program once more money is allocated.  That’s specifically what it says.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  What parameter is your treatment program based on?

MR. HEDRICK:  The Welfare & Institutions Code.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Have you engaged with any of the 15 experts that our doctor mentioned in his testimony?
MR. HEDRICK:  I believe I’ve talked to some of them.  I couldn’t tell you how many.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And when you talk to them, what’s the outcome of those talks?

MR. HEDRICK:  Mostly just asking them what they are seeing when they enter practices and what kind of challenges they have.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how is that weaved into your policies?

MR. HEDRICK:  Well, it’s more future, building a foundation for future activities more than anything.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how much do those future activities cost?

MR. HEDRICK:  That, I don’t know for sure.  I think that we just got the Prevalence Study.  I think there’s a lot more analysis that needs to be done, more input from different stakeholders.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when would that analysis be completed?
MR. HEDRICK:  I don’t have a completion date.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What’s that?

MR. HEDRICK:  I don’t have a completion date for analysis on cost of treatment.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And you’re the Office of Problem Gambling?

MR. HEDRICK:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so you’re telling the committee that you have some future plans, correct?
MR. HEDRICK:  I’m telling you we’re looking at a lot of different things, including other states and what they’re doing, and those are—the way other states are approaching it vary greatly from Louisiana, which has inpatient treatment pretty much only, to Oregon which has a stepped approach, similar to what Dr. Fong talked about.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And when do you think you could have a plan to this committee so we can actually evaluate your analysis of the other states, whether funding is sufficient, whether or not we have a continuum of treatment, as mentioned by the UCLA doctor?  When do you think you might be able to have those types of studies available for the committee, given that this is the purpose of today’s hearing?
MR. HEDRICK:  Yes.  Quite honestly, the staffing I have is working pretty much on the directives we already have in legislation, so I couldn’t even—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. HEDRICK:  --begin to guess.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you don’t have enough staff probably.  Could you do it in a year?

MR. HEDRICK:  To do that, no.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you do it by the end of this session?

MR. HEDRICK:  Within the year, I would think we could probably do something.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  With current staff or with additional staff?

MR. HEDRICK:  It probably would be through contract.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Do you have enough money to do that?

MR. HEDRICK:  I don’t know.  I’d have to do some analysis on that.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you think you need—you know, the number here is $280 million by the council then ten years ago or something, almost ten years ago.  Is that the number?  The doctor mentioned a little lower number or maybe a little higher number.  The first witness mentioned some semblance of a number, somewhere in a much lower range.  But, you know, at some point in time, we have—the state’s got to make some decisions as well.

MR. HEDRICK:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Correct?

MR. HEDRICK:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So we have Indian gaming compacts moving through this legislature which most of what I’ve seen as we begin those hearings is that the state’s portion of that will be somewhere near 25 percent, correct?

MR. HEDRICK:  That’s my understanding.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would it hurt the state out of its portion to put 1 percent to this?  You think it would be helpful?
MR. HEDRICK:  I’m not part of the negotiation process.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Not negotiations.  It’s the state.  We’re not asking the compacts to be amended.  We’re asking whether the state out of its 25 percent should allocate 1 percent to this particular issue.  It seems to me a very easy policy decision on the state’s side, and you’re the director.  And if they call you and ask you, Can you use the money, what do you think your answer will be?

MR. HEDRICK:  We would find a way to use the money.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You would find a way to use the money?  Okay.  Now we’re making progress.  (Laughter)  Okay.  Okay.  That’s good.  Okay.  Then I won’t press too much more on that because I think that’s maybe a direction that we may be heading in, given the testimony today in terms of trying to find additional revenues for this particular issue.  And I sure would hate to do that, only to have you be called by the administration and say we choke on that amount of money and we wouldn’t be able to put it to use and therefore all of our good efforts here in the legislature would be somewhat wasted in terms of trying to find a way to fund this.
Let me ask you a couple of more questions, if I could.  At the end of the day for your particular organization, the amount of coordination between the Attorney General’s Office, yourself, and those on your council, how much of that coordination takes place on a daily basis?  What kind of interaction—what is your normal day?  What does your staff do on a normal day?
MR. HEDRICK:  We have a number—because of staffing, we have a number of contracts that need to be overseen in terms of budgeting as well as work product.  We actually have contracts with UCLA.  Some of the stuff we’re trying to do, again, trying to prepare for the day when we do have money for treatment, is UCLA right now is developing self-help booklets.  Canada’s had some success with at least helping some people with those.  We’re also evaluating the effectiveness of telephone, brief interventions where people can call for several sessions and get help.  Those are things we’re looking at as cost-effective ways of helping people.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What if you don’t have a phone?

MR. HEDRICK:  I’m sorry?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What if you don’t have a phone?  What if one of the categories is lower-income Hispanic families living in Delano, California, and they have a problem but they don’t have a phone?  What are you doing for them?

MR. HEDRICK:  Well, the other thing we’ll be doing is, we’re doing, right now, we’re doing a lot of training for grassroots organization, for example, that work with different ethnic minorities, trying to get the information out about the services that do exist.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Have you ever engaged with rural clinics in terms of, as the doctor mentioned from UCLA, getting some sort of a way for them to recognize pathological gambling addiction?

MR. HEDRICK:  We have the training going on right now about that very issue.  I’ve also done some presentations, at least for the Indian rural health clinics about the issue.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, the Indian rural health clinics—it seems to me the Indian tribes are putting quite a bit of money themselves into their own programs.  I’m talking about on the state side.  I’m going to ask the Indian tribes that when they come up. But I mean, at the end of the day, at the state side, when we are talking about somebody that takes a bus from Earlimart, California, to Table Mountain Rancheria, and they decide to take the bus every day rather than once a week and maybe—and they run into financial problems, run into mental health issues, they go to the clinic, they’re depressed, they go in for depression, how do we, in a rural clinic setting, 200 miles from any urban center, recognize that and what kind of, if you will, interaction you’re having with those clinics so that we can, in essence, get them into your program or a program at some point?
MR. HEDRICK:  Most of our interaction with the clinics have been part of the Public Awareness Program where we have been doing billboards, radios, transit, publications.  We also sent—one of the things we worked with the other agencies on is Problem Gambling Awareness Week.  The Department of Mental Health sent out, I believe, 2,000 flyers to providers in this state, letting them know about the helpline about some of the symptoms.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what would be your reaction to Dr. Fong’s testimony?


MR. HEDRICK:  I have a lot of respect for Dr. Fong.  I think that he’s one of the people that as we move along on this in development, I think he’s one of the people we want to hear from.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  What do you take out of it that sounds good?


MR. HEDRICK:  That we need to provide probably some sort of a stepped approach to working with folks.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  On a continuum?


MR. HEDRICK:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dr. Fong mentioned a continuum.  And given that, is it fair to say that we could work with your office to figure out on each of those various segments on the continuum some sort of funding plan that would actually get at every level, from prevention to at risk to problem to ultimately pathological gambling?  And would it be fair to say that your office needs to provide different types of treatment for every one of those types of addictions on this spectrum differently, or would you just kind of go out and advertise Gambling Addiction Week and then we call it a day?  I mean…


MR. HEDRICK:  No.  I think that eventually we should be helping people at different levels.  Right now, we’re doing what we’re basically directed to do by the legislature.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  And the legislature has given you lots of guidance or very little guidance?


MR. HEDRICK:  They give us some structure about the helplines, about public awareness, about research, that sort of thing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Has the legislature asked you to present a yearly report to us on how things are going?


MR. HEDRICK:  No.  They require a statewide plan, which was just completed this last November.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay. And why don’t you outline your statewide plan for us.


MR. HEDRICK:  Basically, there are key components where, first of all, it was conceived as a living document to be updated periodically.  Key components were increasing public awareness, research and effectiveness of services and trying to do good practices and science-based stuff that Dr. Fong mentioned, building infrastructure, a framework for prevention as well as focus on high-risk populations, developing a technical-assistance program which is what we just started on, developing self-help materials, development of a broad spectrum of responses to meet the needs of different people which we just discussed and work for its development, which I think was a key issue, and that goes back to the number of people that have any kind of training about working with problem gamblers.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And this the book?

MR. HEDRICK:  Yes, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when was this issued?


MR. HEDRICK:  It was actually issued, I believe, in January but it was published in November.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how much does this cost to implement, the book?


MR. HEDRICK:  The cost to implement it?  We don’t have a cost analysis.  That was actually one of the, I think, one of the recommendations that we start looking at cost analysis, what it would cost for this sort of thing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  When can you get back to the committee on how much this would cost to implement?


MR. HEDRICK:  To the whole thing?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, whole thing.


MR. HEDRICK:  Again, it’s really hard to answer that question.  Within this session, I would hope.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’re an oversight committee…


MR. HEDRICK:  Within this session, I would hope…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s our job to ask you the question and your job is to tell us when do you think—you don’t have to get it, you know, July 10, 2007.  But roughly, you know, we want to know ultimately—you’ve got a great plan; budget season is here; we’re going to be moving quite a bit of legislation through this committee.  And sometimes legislation has things like $100 per table.  If your card club or the state gets 25 percent of gaming compacts, and the state makes a decision of its share, I mean, we’d like to know how much this costs so we can make some critical decisions on ultimately trying to fund this and help you out.  So, you know, it would be good if you could get back to us at some time certain on what this is costed out.  I’m sure the Governor’s Office would like to know how much it’s costing.

MR. HEDRICK:  Sure.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Did I lose all my committee members?  Okay.


Do you have anything else you would like to add?


MR. HEDRICK:  I think you’ve covered most of it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me make sure I did.  Hold on for a moment.  Ah, Lottery.  Let’s talk about Lottery for a moment.  We talked about websites and nine point being embedded in these types of advertisings for your particular hotline.  But should the Lottery terminals have your hotline on them?  In other words, should every Lottery terminal have—I mean, everybody goes through some entry way to the Lottery.  Should the terminals have your hotline on it, or is that an unnecessary issue?  Isn’t an effect—I should ask the doctor on this, but I mean, is the Lottery an entry or not, or is that unnecessary?  I mean just give me a perspective.

MR. HEDRICK:  I don’t know about the terminals.  They do hand out flyers about responsible gambling with the number on it at all of their outlets.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How about the back of every Lottery ticket; it’s printed out?


MR. HEDRICK:  I think right now they have their own phone number on there.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would it be good to have your phone number on it?


MR. HEDRICK:  I would think so, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Something to work on, right?


MR. HEDRICK:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of getting your number out, if you will, to other segments—card clubs, Indian casinos—I mean, have you, you have a board here.  I saw that in the back of your book you get together.  I mean, have you had those types of discussions on the way you get your hotline out?


MR. HEDRICK:  Yes.  In fact, one of our technical assistance providers that develop multiple-language brochures actually surveyed a number of the different gambling establishments for what would be useful to them were actually just now starting to get a lot of requests for materials from establishments, and we do have posters and brochures and that sort of thing.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I think that’s all the questions I have.  Thank you very much.


MR. HEDRICK:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We look forward to getting that information from you.


MR. HEDRICK:  Thanks.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go ahead and have Alison Harvey, California Tribal Business Alliance, Gambling Prevention Program; Anthony Miranda, chairman, California Nations Indian Gaming Associations, CNIGA.  Good morning.


MR. ANTHONY MIRANDA:  I don’t know if Alison’s going to make it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. MIRANDA:  Good morning, Chairman.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Good morning.


MR. MIRANDA:  Thank you, Chairman Florez, for the opportunity to provide testimony before your distinguished committee.  I want to thank you on behalf of the CNIGA member Indian Tribes for holding this issue on an issue that has been of concern for tribal governments since we had begun our gaming operations.


Mr. Chairman and Committee Members, I am Anthony Miranda, chairman of the California Nations Indian Gaming Association, or CNIGA.  Our association is an intergovernmental association composed of 64 federally recognized California tribes.  Our statement of purpose includes two principles that we believe to be critical to achieving the long-term goals of tribal governments and tribal government gaming.  First, to protect and promote tribal government gaming and, second, to protect tribal sovereignty.  To advance these principles, CNIGA works closely with our member tribal governments, the State of California, and the Federal Government.

California’s tribal nations take problem gambling very seriously and have been at the forefront to aggressively attack the problem since the inception of California, of tribal government gaming.  To underscore this fact, to date, California tribes are the soul gaming interests to provide funds directly to the State of California for the treatment of problem and pathological gamblers.  In 1999 when tribes were negotiating Tribal state compacts, the tribal governments themselves inserted language directly into the compacts that at the discretion of the legislature would provide funding to the state for programs designed to address gambling addiction.  Despite the fact that California is home to almost 100 card rooms, seven horserace tracks, nine racing fairs, and the State Lottery, California tribal governments are still the only entity to fund the California Office of Problem and Pathological Gambling.


A brief history illustrates just how deeply involved tribes have been in the process.  In 1997, then state Senator Bill Lockyer authored SB 8 that created an outline for a comprehensive gambling prevention program for problem and pathological gamblers in California.  This program was to be carried out by the Office of Compulsive Gambling.  However, language was inserted into the bill which prevented the chapter from becoming operative if funding was not appropriated.  For six years, this office received zero funding.  In 2003, CNIGA sponsored AB 673 which among other things renamed the office responsible for the program to the Office of Problem and Pathological Gambling, or OPG and reestablished the office in the California Department of Alcohol and Drug programs.  Ultimately, at the urging of California’s tribal governments, the California legislature appropriated $3 million for the Indian Gaming Special Distribution Fund to the OPG.  Today $12 million has been appropriated by the legislature to the OPG from the Indian Gaming Special Distribution Fund.  However, it should be noted that the first $3 million was never used by the OPG and returned to the Fund.

One month ago, the OPG issued the first statewide plan to address problem and pathological gambling.  While CNIGA is encouraged that there’s finally a statewide plan in place to treat people who suffer from problem gaming, we’re discouraged that it took the OPG three years to develop this plan which was clearly outlined at SB 8 and AB 673.  CNIGA respectfully requests that the California state legislature continue to monitor the activities of the OPG and insist that the precious money being allocated is used to identify and treat those Californians who suffer from gambling addiction.  We agree with Mr. Fong.  These people need to be treated.


As an organization, the California Nations Indian Gaming Association has long been active on the issue of problem gambling.  CNIGA has co-hosted problem gambling awareness workshops, the California Council on Problem Gambling, and has with its member tribes underwritten all of the costs associated with these workshops.  Individual tribes throughout California have also taken significant steps to combat problem gambling.  Over the past five years, various California tribes have donated an average of $150,000 annually to the California Council on Problem Gambling.  It should be noted that tribal donations are the majority funding of the council.  One tribe, the Picayune ?? Rancheria of Chukchansi Indians have entered into local agreement that will provide $250,000 over the next ten years to the Madera County Mental Health Department to fund gambling programs there.


In addition to payments to the state programs, tribes have also funded nonprofit counseling service for problem gamblers as well as 24-hour toll-free helplines for the National and California Councils on Problem Gambling.  Many tribal casinos have those numbers posted on the walls and circulate in display brochures often in several languages in prominent areas informing patients word to get help for gambling addiction.  Furthermore, several tribal casino websites feature links and phone numbers to both the national and California Council on Problem Gambling.  Many tribal casinos provide training to their employees to identify and assist patrons who may have gambling problems.  Furthermore, several tribal casinos also have self-exclusion programs in which patrons can voluntarily be added to a list that effectively bans them from the casino.

CNIGA has been and will continue to be at the forefront of combating the problem of gambling addiction.  For decades, Tribal people have suffered from the effects of addiction and disease.  It is for this reason that tribes have continuously worked to assist our patrons who suffer from this disease.  Given our collective tribal histories, it is not in the interest of our tribes or our travel businesses to feed unhealthy addictions, and we sincerely want to help anyone who might be experiencing gambling problems.  Since this is an industry-wide problem, it requires an industry-wide response.  While delivering the stated tribal nation’s address at the Western Indian Gaming Conference in January this year, I made problem gambling a priority for the coming year and called for a broad coalition of gaming interests to come to the table to continue to develop wider ranging programs to address problem gambling in California.  I’ve also made contact with the Hague Collegian ?? who’s the chairperson, my opposite side for the card rooms as well, and we’re trying get together to have lunch to discuss this issue.


CNIGA will actively pursue even greater measures over the coming year in which we can expand our efforts and try to enlist the further help of other gaming interests in this state to come up with an even more aggressive plan to treat those who suffer from this addiction.  So I’m open to any questions that I can help answer at this time.  Thank you very much.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s start with a basic-premise question.

MR. MIRANDA:  Sure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You said that problem gamblers are, in your statement, not helpful; you don’t want them.  Why not?  I mean, why not?  I mean, what’s the practical—I mean, we’re going to have, you know, we have a lot of increases in slot machines.  Most of the literature shows that that is a good majority of our problem gamblers, good place where they’re spending most of their time and we’re going to put more in, most likely.  So the question is, you now, from your vantage point, are the tribes who are putting more in, doing enough?  We gave back $3 million.
MR. MIRANDA:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So on the state side, as we understand, I think, very much, you know, we should have swallowed that up and maybe asked for more.  So I mean, what is your overall thought on that?  I mean, that’s what the public wants to know.  We’re going to bring in a lot more.  We’re sure past Las Vegas.  What ultimately—in your colleagues you’ve mentioned folks to get together and talking.  What is it that we’re going to do more to get at this?

MR. MIRANDA:  Well, I think, first of all, taking a look at this issue, it’s a systemic issue.  And if you take a look at the percentages, on the Prevalence Study that was just released and the one that was done before and you look at the percentages from 3 to 5 percent, within that range, most people agree that that seems to be the percentage of the population that has this particular issue.  Tribes are governments.  We have constituents.  We’re very aware of, as I said before, of addiction and disease.  We’re very aware of having to deal with it as governments.  We are in the business of gaming that helps promote and fund our government resources, so we are aware of the issues flowing onto the other governments.  So that is one of the reasons why in the very forefront we wanted to work with the State of California in developing and trying to put money towards this issue.

Is enough being done?  I can’t answer that, in all honesty, because I think the Office of Problem Gambling has to come up with some more answers to this question.  You know, tribes are the ones that are pushed to get this money to the state, pushed to get this money spent.  You know, you can take a look at other states—Oregon, New Mexico—that have treatment programs in place.  We’re not reinventing the wheel here.  California’s probably the only major state involved in gaming that doesn’t have programs in place.  We’re a little behind the ball on that.  But I do think there’s a lot of great programs out there.  I myself for three or four years served on the National Council of Problem Gambling, the National Council.  Due to time constraints, I’m no longer on that.  But I think tribes are more than willing to take a look at that tissue, work with other segments of the industry.  You know, we’re talking about the Lottery, we’re talking about racetracks, card rooms, and charitable games as well.  That’s an issue too.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me ask you a policy question on our side of the sovereign, the State of California.  You mentioned the funding and it used to go to a Special Distribution Fund and then we would in essence fund this particular office.  In the new compacts, we’re no longer doing that; is that correct?

MR. MIRANDA:  Well, Chairman, you know, I represent the association and we really don’t get involved in those types of discussions on a compact.  You know, we support all tribes to negotiate the compacts as they see fit, but the individual negotiations are up to the tribes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask it another way.  If the state out of its current structure in upcoming compacts and even in past compacts, there is a disconnect between a Special Distribution Fund and the General Funds.  So at some point in time, the state will have to step in if we believe this is a problem from the General Fund.  It seems as though where the General Fund is slated, to get more dollars, I look at the Governor’s budget—it says $506 million.  So if we’re getting more money in, I would assume that CNIGA would have no problem with the state spending its own resources to combat this problem, correct?

MR. MIRANDA:  Oh, definitely, definitely, yes.  We wouldn’t have a problem with that.  I guess I can answer that question in the fact that right now in essence you have the baseline compact of the ’99 compact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.

MR. MIRANDA:  I mean, that is the baseline compact that was negotiated and signed by over 60-some tribes.  The compacts that had been renegotiated since then do take into effect that they don’t continue to distribute to the Special Distribution Fund.  Yes, that is correct.  And the monies that are flowing to the state certainly allocating them how you see, how the state sees, that’s really up to the state.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  I guess the reason I’m asking that is, in the old model, even before these compacts, any way you looked at it, the state was, if you wanted to give 100 percent of the Special Distribution Fund, there’s a limit to it; there’s a cap.  And under the new formula, which is, the General Fund gets additional dollars and it’s in the General Fund in general--
MR. MIRANDA:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  --we get to make decisions on the General Fund.  It can go higher; it can be lower.  But at the end of the day, there’s not any sort of nexus between, if you will, gambling and the cap for problematic gamblers.  If the state said, this is such a problem that we want to allocate $250 million, $280 million, 2 percent of things that are coming in or whatever our percentage of the General Fund is, we would probably have the ability to do that, and I guess the same question is, You have no opposition to that?
MR. MIRANDA:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.

MR. MIRANDA:  In fact, to go a little bit further, that was a legislative budget issue in the allocation issue of the money in the ’99 compacts, you know, and understanding the way the Special Distribution came forward to mitigate the impacts of tribes that are already involved in gaming.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me just ask some general questions, if I could.  Your industry particularly done studies?  You mentioned being on the National Council, self-funded studies or have been studies, or are we waiting for the states to come up with studies?  I mean, ultimately, how do we get to…

MR. MIRANDA:  Well, I think, you know, one of the issues trying to get the office up and going and then doing the Prevalence Study, which was a follow-up study, shows that we do have the problem and the issue is systemic.  Tribes, I don’t think, have actually studied the issue per se as comprehensively as the state has done.  We’ve mainly contributed to the office, the California Council on Problem Gambling, and the National Council of Problem Gambling.  We’ve helped funded awareness weeks, printed brochures, 1-800 numbers, provided links on our website and so forth.  I think I’m going to take back to my association to add the state’s number to our state association website as well.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You don’t want to be on any state-sponsored site links, of course, right?  (Laughter)  I’m kidding.  That’s a question for the Lottery folks.

Do you identify problem gamblers particularly in your particular casinos, for example?  I mean, is this something that is, wait for state studies, yes.  But I mean, is there a profile?  I mean, you’re on the ground level.
MR. MIRANDA:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’re state government.  I mean, is there a way or are you guys looking at ways to identify profiles of folks?  You clearly know, have, you would know better than any of us sitting up here; and if you do do that, then what is the steps necessary to get them into various types of treatment?  Have them call the state?

MR. MIRANDA:  Normally, we refer them to the state and the help lines.  Identifying the issues is very, very difficult.  As stated before, it’s an odorless, colorless, really form of addiction that is not readily apparent.  We are working with the California Council on working and training, you know, outsourcing on training employees, to spot signs of addiction, and also to refer people to the helplines and so forth.

In terms of treatment, you know, we’re far behind the ball in terms of certified counselors, programs, and so forth, that are out there.  That’s probably the main issue in the state.  You know, we have the hotline numbers.  We’re trying to identify people.  Tribes have self-exclusion programs where they excluded themselves and, you know, try to handle them that way.  As an association, we’re also working with people in the industry where the technology is such that we may be able to, and this is a big maybe, that to develop a smart-card technology that actually identifies a person and would lock them out of the slot machine trying to play it.  Now this is very, very new.  It’s something that’s never been done before.  But as an association, we’re looking at trying to develop that with people that represent the slot machine industry.  So that’s another issue that we’re looking at in trying to develop as well.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much, Mr. Miranda.

MR. MIRANDA:  Thank you, Chairman, appreciate it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s have, if we could, Anna Carr, deputy director of Legislation and Public Affairs, Gambling Control Commission; Terri Sue Canale, Division of Gambling Control, Gambling Prevention Program; Heather Lambert, director of Legislative Affairs and Outreach, California State Lottery; Sue Ross, legislative director of California Horse Racing Board.

Okay.  Division of Gambling Control, Gambling Prevention Program.

MS. TERRI SUE CANALE:  Good morning.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Good morning.

MS. CANALE:  Thank you for allowing me to be here.  My name is Terri Sue Canale, and I am the responsible gambling manager.  I’ll quickly just go over what we do at the Division of Gambling Control, if that’s what you guys want to start out with rather than questions.
Okay.  About three years ago, without any statutory mandate or any specific funding going to problem gambling through the Division of Gambling Control, Director Lytle thought that it was appropriate that we develop some sort of responsible gambling program to work with the tribal casinos and card rooms in California.  At that time, he allocated resources that he already had in house to develop a program, look at other states.  We looked at best practices from states that have been listed today.  We also looked at Arizona, New Jersey, Missouri, Louisiana for what other state regulators were doing.  We made changes to our website.  We have a responsible gambling website with a whole page of information, and we developed what we believe to be key elements of a responsible gambling program.  That includes employee training in the casinos, it includes self-help information and the 1-800-GAMBLER number; responsible out ??, advertising not to appeal to youth, and a self-restriction and a self-exclusion program.

Self-restriction would be, you going into a casino and you would want to be a cash-only customer or you want to be excluded from mailings.  They can restrict from certain things.  Self-exclusion would be, bar me from that casino completely or bar me from all the casinos in the State of California.  We work with the California Gambling Control Commission in promulgating regulations that become effective Monday, March 5, and those regulations will apply to the California card rooms and it basically implements that plan, the key elements of a responsible gambling program.

We are members of the Office of Problem Gambling Advisory Board.  And as soon as the regulations go into effect, we will administer the statewide self-exclusion program.  We’re in the process of buying a database where casinos can have a web link where they link into the database and then they’ll show pictures and information of people who want to be self-excluded from casinos.  For those who don’t have computers, we’re going to mail out pictures identifying information to also _______ of all card rooms in the State of California.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What percentage do you think of pathological gamblers are going to self-select out?

MS. CANALE:  I don’t know a percentage per se.  I do know that in the…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Stop.  Dr. Fong, what percentage of pathological-profiled gamblers are going to self-select out, your best estimate?  You can say one.  That’s okay.

MS. CANALE:  We already have one.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you?  Okay.  Okay.

DR. FONG:  I would probably say about 5 percent.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Five percent.  Okay.  Five percent.  Thank you.

MS. CANALE:  To give a number that might help, in Arizona, they have 26 tribal casinos and there are about 1,400 people on their self-exclusion list, so we have a lot more casinos than that.  In addition to the self-exclusion database, when somebody signs up for the self-exclusion program, we want to use the tools and their resources that our colleagues are developing, like Dr. Fong, the self-help booklet.  We want to send that out and hopefully that will aid in the natural recovery.  So we’re working with all of the existing resources that are out there.  We hope to also work with the tribal casinos to sign MOUs so that they’ll want to be a part of the self-exclusion database and share information.  So then that way, we would truly have a statewide California self-exclusion.

In addition to that, we work with other state agencies in the California Council on problem gambling in Problem Gambling Awareness Week.  We mail out information to all tribal casinos and all card rooms in the State of California.  And in the future, our goal is to establish a youth awareness program.  In the past, the Department of Justice has done that in drugs and substance abuse.  They’ve had different youth-oriented programs.  And what we’re trying to do is to talk to the kids about internet poker and sports betting, and we have our first pilot high school assembly scheduled for next Thursday at Torey Pines High School in San Diego where we want to just educate and give information to the kids and the teachers.  We’re starting a slogan contest to come up with, like a Say No to Drugs slogan for the Department of Justice Problem Gambling, and we are hoping to partner with OPG and other resources that they are using, like Friday Night Live, in our assemblies in the future.  We have partnered with the NCAA this year to provide information to all of the colleges within California, and we produced two posters that would appeal directly to youth.  One is poker related, and another one is basketball related because it’s basketball season and March Madness is just around the corner.  And NCAA is using our posters to send out to all of the college campuses, and basically it’s just a slogan with the 1-800-GAMBLER number.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are you sending a memo out to the legislative office that have office pools?

MS. CANALE:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Go ahead.

MS. CANALE:  After that, we just hope to continue our involvement with Office of Problem Gambling and the other stakeholders in the planning of treatment but with no monies provided.  We’re doing what we can.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Let me ask a question structurally.  This is a gambling control--
MS. CANALE:  Division.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  --division.

MS. CANALE:  Under the AG’s office.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Under the AG’s office.  Okay.  And how much interaction do you have with the Office of Problem Gambling?

MS. CANALE:  We sit on the Office of Problem Gambling Advisory Board, and then we also work with the Office of Problem Gambling for Problem Gambling Awareness Week.  Our meetings started back in…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s take out the we for a moment.

MS. CANALE:  I (laughter).

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How much interaction is there between your office and the State Office of Problem Gambling?   You’re out there every day, correct?

MS. CANALE:  Um-hmm.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s your job.

MS. CANALE:  I probably talk to Steve on a weekly basis.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what do you guys talk about?

MS. CANALE:  We talk about what DOJ can do to help the Office of Problem Gambling, and then we partner with them to do things like mail out their posters to the tribal casinos and the card rooms because we have mailing lists and it’s easy for us to do that.  I sit on the advisory boards, so we assisted in coming up with a statewide plan.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  When I talked to the Council on Problem Gambling, I’ll ask them that question.  Thank you very much, appreciate it.
Okay.  Terri Sue—oh, we just did that.  I’m so sorry.

Who do we have?  The Lottery and the Horseracing Board left?  I’m sorry.  Go ahead.

MS. ANNA CARR:  Good morning, Mr. Chair.  Anna Carr, deputy director of Legislation and Public Affairs with the Gambling Control Commission.

Thanks for inviting me here today.  I’d like to talk about the commission’s new problem gambling regulations.  Terri Sue already mentioned some of the premises of the regulations for card rooms.  I’d like to go into a little bit more detail.

The regs were developed in coordination, of course, with the Division of Gambling Control, the Office of Problem Gambling, and our sister agency is the Lottery Commission, the Horseracing Board.  In addition, we also included the input from the California Council on Problem Gambling, gambling establishments, and we requested the input of the public and held public hearings to gather input on this, and the regulations were approved by the commission.  The self-exclusion program, as Terri pointed out, is a voluntary agreement and it’s the most extensive to allow individuals to restrict themselves from all card rooms.  The options here are individuals can choose to be excluded for a period of one year, five years, or a lifetime.  And once completed, once this form is completed, the self-exclusion request is irrevocable.  It was designed that way to give it some teeth.  The self-exclusion list will be maintained by the Division of Gambling Control in their database, and that’s the coordination involved.

The self-restriction program applies to specific card rooms, so individuals can choose to be excluded from a particular card room or they can restrict or limit their check-cashing privileges, the amount of credit.  They can be excluded from a particular game.  If poker is the specific problem, they can be excluded from that particular game.  If they choose self-restriction, they complete this self-restriction form that’s developed by the card room, and the self–exclusion form is on our website right now.  The self-restriction form will be available in the card rooms, and we would expect to have that information on our website as well.

And just coincidentally, we have updated our website dealing with problem gambling.  The information is clearly in front of our webpage.  We have the 1-800-GAMBLER number, and we have all the link—when you get on the homepage, you click on Responsible Gambling.  It does take you to several different…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I didn’t look at your webpage.  Do you have portals to Youbet or…
MS. CARR:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MS. CARR:  That’s outside of our scope.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MS. CARR:  As far as implementation on the regulations…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do they have portals to the California Lottery?

MS. CARR:  I don’t believe we have links to the other commissions.  We’ve just updated the website in the past few days, so I’ll have to check.  I can get back to your staff and let you know.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How prevalent is the Office of Problem Gambling’s number on your website?

MS. CARR:  There’s a direct link to it.  I can print out all of the links to the website.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But there’s a direct link on the Lottery too.  It’s just in gray and nine point in some corner.  I mean, where is it on your website?

MS. CARR:  I can print out all the information and get it to you.  I just have the homepage with me.  I apologize.  I don’t have all the…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is that your homepage?

MS. CARR:  That’s the homepage.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can I see it?  Unless you’ve got your notes on it, then I’ll give it back to you.  So this is the home site to the California Gambling Control Commission, and yours says Responsible Gambling as well?

MS. CARR:  And when you click on that site, you’re taken to several different areas that address problem gambling, including the Office of Problem Gambling’s website.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me just divert for a moment, if I could.  Dr. Fong, I hate to keep asking you to comment from the gallery, but Responsible Gambling seems to be the link on most of the California websites.  If I have a problem with gambling, do I know that’s me if I’m looking at these websites, or is there a better way to connote the link to get to treatment?  I mean, I don’t know, need treatment, if I have a problem, I bet every day.  I don’t know.  What is it—I mean, from your vantage point?  I’ll let you think about it for a moment, but I want to get back to you on that at some point during the hearing.  Okay.  Go ahead.

MS. CARR:  If there is a better way to put it on the website to make more sense, we’d be happy to change it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MS. CARR:  Regarding implementation, the card rooms by July 1 of 2007 will be required to implement the self-exclusion and self-exception program, as well as any policies and procedures and distributing materials of patrons so that will give them some time....


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Steve, can you give that to Dr. Fong.  I want him to look at that.


MS. CARR:  That will give the card room some time to ramp up to get their…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What’s the date in that again?  I’m sorry.


MS. CARR:  July 1, 2007.  And also, I’d like to note that the card rooms identify excluded patrons.  They are required to escort these individual from the card room, write a notification to the state, and any forfeited winnings would then go into the Gambling Addiction Program Fund.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  When they say notification to the state, what does that mean?  What kind of notification and what kind of—what do they provide?


MS. CARR:  That means let us know that somebody who had, is either under the self-exclusion or self-restriction program was determined to be in a card room attempting to bet or in the betting area.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  What do you do?


MS. CARR:  At this point, we would collect that information.  There isn’t any action that we can take against the individual.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So what’s the use of the reg then?


MS. CARR:  Well, the use of the reg is attempting to address the problem for somebody who wants help.  That’s what this is all about.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But if they walk in and out and they get reported, what’s the consequence, anyone?


MS. CANALE:  We’ll be able to use the database.  They’re creating it by region.  So if we at notification, we’ll be able to send notification to the card rooms all over the State of California and specifically to that region where that person lives or they know that that person has tried to reenter.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And then what happens?


MS. CANALE:  What will happen is, it will alert the security and surveillance at the card rooms to watch for that person, maybe like a higher alert.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And if that person walks in again, what happens?


MS. CANALE:  They should not allow entry to the gambling establishment.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who’s they?


MS. CANALE:  The security of the card room.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So is there a reg holding that they are responsible for what they do?


MS. CARR:  As far as what happens, we do review the program to…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me get to my question and then we can move on.  I mean, this is what we do.  We pass great-sounding laws and then we get down to the implementation of somebody that recognized and profiled and sent up, got the notification back to the card club, watch for this person.  All that happens and the person walks back in and then what?

MS. CANALE:  If the card room is knowingly allowing that person back in, we could then use the disciplinary guidelines which also go into effect very soon.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That’s what I need to know.  Thank you.


MS. CARR:  And the director can make an administrative determination that the card room’s out of compliance.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MS. CARR:  That will be considered in--


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So there’s a hammer here.


MS. CARR:  --licensing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So there’s a hammer here ?.


MS. CARR:  Yes.  In addition, the card rooms would require to post referral information, including the 1-800-GAMBLER number and information and referral services to gamblers.


Back to my other point about any forfeited funds would get put into the Gambling Addiction Program Fund, and that was created just this year, January 1, pursuant to AB 1973 that basically has the $100 per-table fee going into this fund with the intent of providing treatment services.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MS. CARR:  In addition, the commission is involved in other activities related to problem gambling.  We have a member that participates on the Office of Problem Gambling’s Advisory Group, along with the other state agencies.  We have updates on problem gambling that are included on the commission’s agenda from time to time.  We’ve invited Office of Problem Gambling to provide updates to the commission and to our gaming policy advisory commission.  And in recognition of Problem Gambling Awareness Week, we’ve invited Dr. Rachel Volberg who worked on the Prevalence Study in the survey to come to our commission meeting and make a presentation on the findings, and we’ve also included updates on problem gambling on our Gaming Policy Advisory Committee agenda.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And on your gaming, I missed that last point.


MS. CARR:  Gaming Policy Advisory Committee.  It’s an advisory workgroup that meets.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does the commission have a workgroup on problem gambling?


MS. CARR:  We participate in the advisory group with the Office of Problem Gambling.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Do you, yourself, as a gambling ____ commission, have a subcommittee on problem gambling?


MS. CARR:  We don’t have a subcommittee on problem gambling, to my knowledge, but we did develop the regulations so we did have somebody working on problem…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You have subcommittees on the commission for other matters or is this just…

MS. CARR:  Not recently.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What subcommittees exist now?


MS. CARR:  My understanding is we don’t have any subcommittees.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You don’t have subcommittees.  Okay.  All right.  And then what is the interaction with the California Council on Problem Gambling?


MS. CARR:  We participate—we work with them as part of the Office of Problem Gambling’s advisory workgroup, so we do communicate with them from time to time as we do with the Office of Problem Gambling.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  When you say we, who’s we?


MS. CARR:  Well, basically, me and our staff counsel, Heather Hoganson, who drafted the regulations.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you both the question.  Is there enough money to address the problem of problem gambling as currently funded in the state budget for the Office of Problem Gambling?


MS. CARR:  We look to the Office of Problem Gambling as far as developing a plan.  I think at this point the Prevalence Study was just done.  We know basically what the extent of the problem is.  But as far as what model is most effective and where the State of California should go, that’s something that we look towards the Office of Problem Gambling to work with them in developing a plan for the future.  We don’t know what the amount—I don’t know what the amount is at this time.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does $3 million sound sufficient?


MS. CARR:  Three million basically funds the efforts of the Office of Problem Gambling right now as far as their prevention services.


MS. CANALE:  I’m not a financial person but I would say that…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does your office spend more than $3 million right now in terms of just what you’re doing?


MS. CANALE:  No, no.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MS. CANALE:  But if you look at what other states are doing best practices, there’s other states spending a lot more than what California spends on problem gambling.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure, sure.  So would any of you recommend that the state better fund this particular office?


MS. CANALE:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You must not be funded by the Department of Finance, right?


MS. CANALE:  No.  We are.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Oh, you are?  Okay.  All right.


MS. CANALE:  This is just my first time ______.  (Laughter)


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  If Mr. Genest calls, you call me.


Okay.  Thank you both, appreciate it, unless there’s any other comments you have.  No?  Okay.


Let’s turn to the State Lottery and the  California Horseracing Board, if we could.  Questions, State Lottery.


MS. HEATHER LAMBERT:  Hi.  Heather Lambert, deputy director of Legislative Affairs and Outreach for the California Lottery.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You were supposed to do at some point in time some profile of who ultimately plays your games.  When was the last time that profile was done and what were the results of that?


MS. LAMBERT:  We have tracking studies that are done monthly.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Not monthly, but there’s supposed to be some baseline report or something of that sort where, you know, you actually have a good picture of your games and who plays your games.  Is that your monthly now?


MS. LAMBERT:  We do it monthly and annually.  It’s included as part of our annual report.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What do you think about problem gambling and gamblers and the Lottery?  Is this an entry point or not?


MS. LAMBERT:  There’s studies to say that it is; there’s studies that say that say it isn’t.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What study do you believe?  What study does the California Lottery?


MS. LAMBERT:  It would be convenient for me to believe certainly that it wasn’t, but I think that we feel responsible as part of the gaming community in California to do what we can for the efforts to prevent problem gambling.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what are the efforts that the California Lottery is making?


MS. LAMBERT:  The California Lottery currently, actually since 1998, our previous director and commission members found that our Problem Gambling Program, without any obligation to do so, since that time, they’ve provided approximately $1 million in funding approximately, give or take $100,000 a year.  It’s a program that has certainly grown and changed over time.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  One million?


MS. LAMBERT:  Over the course of about ten years, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MS. LAMBERT:  It’s about $100,000 a year.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  A hundred thousand dollars a year goes, without us telling you, to look at problem gambling?


MS. LAMBERT:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  What was your—how much did you make last year?


MS. LAMBERT:  Me?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, not you.  (Laughter)


MS. LAMBERT:  I can’t pay for the whole effort.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We can look that up _______.  We don’t need to ask you that.


MS. LAMBERT:  I’m like, uh-oh.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Don’t you know we can do that before these hearings?  No.  I’m kidding.

MS. LAMBERT:  I’m trying to buy a house.  (Laughter)


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What’s the percentage of the hundred thousand of the…


MS. LAMBERT:  The Lottery in the sales last year was $3.6 billion; and revenues, $1.4 billion.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So I’m sorry.  So sales were…


MS. LAMBERT:  Three point six.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Three point six billion; and revenues were…


MS. LAMBERT:  One point 4 billion.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  One point 4 billion.

MS. LAMBERT:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And we spent $100,000 on the issue of problem gambling?


MS. LAMBERT:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MS. LAMBERT:  Would you like me to outline our current program for you?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No.  My question I have is, Is that sufficient?


MS. LAMBERT:  Certainly, we’re proud of the efforts that we have done so far.  It’s a program that has grown and expanded over time.  We have worked with the Office of Problem Gambling in the California Council on Problem Gambling and certainly welcome their recommendations, the legislature’s recommendations, and the recommendations of our commission to expand our program.  It’s something we constantly, as with any ongoing program, assess on an ongoing basis.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you believe the hotline has a value?


MS. LAMBERT:  The hotline we currently maintain has value.  We certainly see that in the number of calls that go into that hotline.  There hasn’t been…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you have your own hotline beyond the Office of Problem Gambling?


MS. LAMBERT:  Our hotline was founded in 1998.  It is a separate hotline, and I think probably Bruce might be able to expand on why we have a separate number.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Or do you?  You tell us.  Why do you have a separate number?


MS. LAMBERT:  Pardon?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why do you have as separate number targeting the same group?

MS. LAMBERT:  Us?  Our efforts began in 1998.  I’m not familiar with why we started with a separate phone line.  I don’t know that 1-800-GAMBLER existed at that time, but we have a separate line that we use that actually goes to the same call center that the Office of Problem Gambling’s calls go to, so we’re going to the same place that all the calls for California are going.  We’ve had some discussion in the current year of contract for the current phone line expires in June of this year that perhaps those monies would be better spent unifying that effort under 1-800-GAMBLER so that we had one effort throughout the state.  So it certainly is something that we’re assessing their contract as coming due.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That’s good information.  So that contract comes due in…


MS. LAMBERT:  In June.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  …in June. And is it a formal recommendation of the commission that we…


MS. LAMBERT:  The commission has not met yet on this issue.  It’s something that we hope to present to them in the future.  We’re in the middle of doing our budget exercises…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would the commission be willing to put more dollars towards that?


MS. LAMBERT:  I think that, you know, certainly, as your staff is aware, we’re having an off-sales year so every dollar counts right now.  But certainly they have raised this issue in past commission meetings, to my knowledge, and I think that they’d be amenable to providing funding at the recommendation of either the legislature or the Office of Problem Gambling.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Let me ask a couple more questions, if I could.


So your number is—you have your own number.


MS. LAMBERT:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the commission is going to meet and talk about the expiration of the current number and you’re going to try to merge with the Office of Problem Gambling.  The recommendation may be—you’re going to discuss additional funding for the advertising of that number then?


MS. LAMBERT:  Yes.  Right now, that number is advertised on every single ticket and on every single brochure…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Your current number?


MS. LAMBERT:  Our current number, our website, and that’s an issue I want to address when you have a moment.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.


MS. LAMBERT:  As well as billboards and so forth throughout the state, so there would be a significant cost incurred to change all of our material.  But there is a feeling that that may be what’s best for the efforts for the state to be more unified.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Go ahead and talk about the website.


MS. LAMBERT:  The website, if I could pass this out, I think we feel victim to a to a printing issue.  There is actually two buttons on our website for…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  When was the last time your website was updated?  It wasn’t this morning, right?


MS. LAMBERT:  No, no.  This has existed for sometime.  If you compare the two, you’ll see it.  The printing cut it off right at the spot where the Play Responsibly button is on the right-hand side.  So we have the link at the very top of the menu which is on every single webpage that you link to in our website as well as the button that’s on the right-hand side.  It is certainly more prominently displayed and eye catching when you look at the website.  That particular link will link you to six pages within our website that holds content on problem gambling—I don’t want to say diagnosis, but tips—on how to see if you or a loved one has problem gambling issues as well as…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is your Play Responsibly button also in Spanish?


MS. LAMBERT:  I believe it is in Spanish once you get into the Spanish portal, but I can check and report back to you on that, certainly.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Go ahead.


MS. LAMBERT:  Once you get into the Play Responsibly portal on our website, there are six pages with content.  We have links to six other websites as resources, including Office of Problem Gambling, California Council on Problem Gambling, the National, I believe the National Council on Problem Gambling, Office of Problem Gambling, et cetera.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the Lottery’s overall contribution to this issue, the Lottery considers new games, and you have daily numbered games, for example.  Is there a discussion on their effects on problem gamblers?  In other words, are there certain games that may be attractive to gamblers that may look at slots or may look at other types of venues?  Are you looking at those types of draws maybe?  Maybe if someone isn’t as interested in a Scratcher but you come out with a numbers game that someone says, hey, this is kind of like, you know, do you do that analysis?


MS. LAMBERT:  We are prohibited in statute from any games that are casino-like, if you will.  So that’s not a discussion that’s had when we introduced Scratchers.  However, with every game that is introduced, the commission is briefed on that.  I’m not sure that they’re currently briefed on whether this can be a…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Casino-like would be like a ball bouncing…


MS. LAMBERT:  Blackjack and anything to do with a casino-type theme, so any games that would exist in a casino.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  As you go through your games, you’re not…


MS. LAMBERT:  Currently, I’m not aware of it.  It’s something that could be happening.  And if it is, I’ll certainly report back to your office.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But you have a five-word Scratcher game?

MS. LAMBERT:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s a crossword.  Is there any effects on that in terms of problem gamblers or just crossword?

MS. LAMBERT:  I’m not aware of any effects on that game specifically.  I’m not aware of any effects on any of our games specifically.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, that worries me then because if you’re not aware of your effects of your games specifically on problem gamblers, that would be the purpose that we’re here.

MS. LAMBERT:  Well, and to clarify, I think I’m not aware of any of the games specifically.  As you know, we offer a number of products.  I don’t have specific data, and I’m not sure any data exists on which games specifically…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could have a higher effect?

MS. LAMBERT:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And why wouldn’t that analysis take place?

MS. LAMBERT:  I couldn’t speak to that.  It’s something that certainly we could look into.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you look into that?

MS. LAMBERT:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  As we start looking at every level of this, I think the question is, you know, particularly a state-sponsored lottery, ultimately these are the types of—you know, when we get into games, you know, obviously if there are games that are more enticing to pull people into later, you know, further addictions that go beyond, that’s what we’re concerned with.  I guess I assumed that every game that’s picked has some nexus to problem gambling in terms of an entry or portal to other types of gambling.

MS. LAMBERT:  I think you touched on something that’s kind of an interesting tightrope that we walk every day at the Lottery.  We were created by a will of the people who voted, the citizens of California, to create a supplemental education funding as best as we could and as responsibly as we could, which we’re certainly try and do, but it’s a fine line every day.  You want to certainly increase sales without creating any further issues.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  At this point in time, there’s not any body or anybody in the Lottery world that’s looking at those nexuses.

MS. LAMBERT:  There is a staff designated to problem gambling within the California Lottery.  We do have a staff member designated.  But as far as I’m aware, there’s no presentation specifically.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  But they’re designated to do advertising and outreach related, but they’re not looking at the games specifically to see if ultimately—is there such a thing as an addictive—I should ask Dr. Fong this—I’m sorry.  I should have him to sit here at the dais.  But do folks—we talk a lot about self-selection here.  Mr. Miranda talked about self-selection and other folks have talked about self-selection.  I mean, is there such a thing as someone self-selecting out of a Lottery?

MS. LAMBERT:  It’s not a program that currently exists; and to my knowledge, it doesn’t exist anywhere in the nation.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So that means we can’t—I’m asking, or if the concept…
MS. LAMBERT:  I’m not saying it’s impossible.  I don’t know enough about Lottery, the kind of the interface between Lottery products and the possibility of a self-exclusion program.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you just look into it?

MS. LAMBERT:  Yes, absolutely.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It would be interesting to kind of—

MS. LAMBERT:  Absolutely.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  --talk a little bit about that.  Okay.  I think that’s all the questions I have.  Do you have any further testimony that you’d like to…

MS. LAMBERT:  No.  I think…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s it?

MS. LAMBERT:  I’m comfortable.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s the shortest Lottery hearing we’ve ever had from you guys.

MS. LAMBERT:  I appreciate that.  (Laughter)

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s pretty good.  Let me ask Dr. Fong, if I could, if you had an opportunity to deal with the links that seem to transcend all of our websites to Play Responsibly.  Play Responsibly sounds to me kind of like play to win. But, you know, how would you—what would be a better connotation from your vantage point?  And if you can come up for a moment, Dr. Fong, because you’ve obviously done clinical research; you’ve looked into this.  I mean, what, from your vantage point—is this just fine?  You don’t have to worry about it or do you have any thoughts?

DR. FONG:  Yes.  I have some on this.  It’s a term of semantics.  You know, for a long time, it was gambling, gambling, gambling, and the industry changed it out to gaming.  And then Harrah’s, I think, was the first one to come back with responsible gaming, kind of responsible gaming and training for their employees and what are the signs.  It’s the semantics, but the practicalities of it, when I have patients who were looking for treatment, the first place they go is Google, and they’ll type in gambling addiction and treatment.  They don’t type in responsible gaming programs; they don’t type in responsible gambling.  And it’s rare for them to get onto the California Gambling Commission’s control website.  That’s not the first thing that pops on Google.
The link there, I think, the term, yes, responsible gaming or gambling, is known to us in the field what it is, but I think we have a couple of surveys on this, is that most civilians aren’t going to know what that means.  I think one of the things I’d like to see is a consistent term for any sort of state-funded agency that always links back to office seeking help or problem gambling, pathological gambling.  But the consistency is really important because, if you go to all these other websites and you go to the other industry websites, you see different terms—problem gambling, responsible gaming.

I’ll tell you one quick story on an internet website, internet gambling website, says, “Need help?  24/7.”  So I thought, oh, this is very interesting.  That means this internet gambling site has problem gambling.  I clicked on it and it takes you right to technical assistance.  You take a phone number and you call that number.  Within a minute, you’re on talking about software problems or technical problems you have downloading the software for or inability to transfer your money.  So there, the website says, “Need help?  24/7.”  I as a clinician thought, oh, this is responsible.  But if I were a consumer or patron, I don’t know what I would think.  So it’s technical assistance to get better internet gaming.  So consistency of terms is a real important issue.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s see, just before you leave, if we changed everything on our state websites from Play Responsibly to Gaming Addiction and Treatment, I mean, would that not better connote a button that I might want to push if I felt I was in that category?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  It’s certainly possible that there would be no data just to show that people would push that button more than if it were Gambling Responsibly.  I think to put in Problem and Pathological Gambling might be enough or Seeking Help or Info on Problem/Pathological Gambling, something like that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

DR. FONG:  But a consistent term across all of the state agencies.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you.  Okay.  All right.  Nothing else from the Lottery?   Okay.

If we could, Sue, thank you for joining us, appreciate it.

MS. SUE ROSS:  Good afternoon.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I don’t know if you have some testimony, but I also have some questions.  Go ahead.
MS. ROSS:  Okay.  I’m Sue Ross from the Horseracing  Board.  And just two years ago, I was asked to participate in the Problem Gambling Awareness Advisory Group, and I represent the board on that group and also before this committee.  Horseracing is responsible for…
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sue, can I interrupt you for a moment?

MS. ROSS:  Sure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m sorry.  There was one more question I wanted to ask the Lottery.

As you prepare, just so I have a task for you, as you start to think about games a connecting them to certain categories, I mean, every study that we’ve had shown the Lottery to be some pathway into gaming.  I mean, there’s no doubt that you said the research is mixed, but it seems to me, my reading it, and I asked you to see if there is a connection between games and, if you will, that pathway.  You’re going to go back and see if that occurs.

For example, you have one, American Idol Scratcher, and I’m kind of wondering, Who’s that targeted to?  I’m sure it’s not targeted to my dad. But if you’re 18 and over, I mean, it seems to be, you know, American Idol Scratcher seems to be that portal, that interest, for the younger folks that every study has told us, you know, it starts to move through this process.  That’s the kind of analysis that we need to have when you talk about pathological gambling because if you’re, you know, whether it’s Texas Hold ‘Em on the internet or whether it’s American Idol Scratchers, I mean, at some point in time, that seems to be the targeted audience.  And if you’re telling me if you’re doing it to make more sales but there’s not a connection to some sort of entry point for younger folks entering into this, that’s the kind of analysis we want.

MS. LAMBERT:  Understood, and I think, you know, certainly the American Idol question has come up.  I know.  I looked at it when I started.  I was very surprised to look at the tracking studies that were done and the demographic of an American Idol viewer so your dad may need to fess up his…
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, he picked Taylor so don’t worry.  He follows it.

MS. LAMBERT:  Eighty-two percent, 18 and older, is the demographic that views the last season of American Idol.  So we certainly felt comfortable, given the high amount, the high percentage of the demographic being over 18, that that was something we can look forward to.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, because I think, folks with less disposable income, you go, they buy them every week.  And, you know, that becomes, the thought process ____.  I’ll let Fred Jones espouse on that when he comes up.  But I just want to know, make sure that there’s some connection to that as you go forward.
I’m sorry, Sue.

MS. ROSS:  No problem.

The Horseracing Board’s responsible for regulation, licensing, and enforcement of law relating to the conduct of horseracing for pari-mutuel wagering.  Problem gambling is definitely not our area of expertise, and it hasn’t been something that’s normally and ordinarily been brought before the board.  _____ helpline statistics report.  This report noticed that only 1.9 percent of all the calls were horseracing related.  That’s 366 calls out of over 19,000.  The only categories below this were Bingo, private card games, and the stock market.  So we’re kind of fuzzy on where we play our part in all of this, but we do realize there is a part.  So to begin, we decided to follow the lead of the Office of Problem Gambling and support their activities while the studies they had in progress and that were previously mentioned were completed.

The Horseracing Board asked the industry to voluntarily lend assistance, and we led the way by placing a banner on our website with the helpline number displayed.  And I know it’s been said we don’t have one, but it’s in a big blue box right below our banner on the homepage and it scrolls because we thought movement might attract more attention.   But if people can’t find it, we need to go revisit it, maybe make it a different color or stop the scrolling and have it stationary because it has been there since about December of 2005.

Since then, the industries also utilize their time, special talents, and resources to support the Office of Problem Gambling.  The first thing we did, because we understood it was important to get the phone number out, was they displayed posters in their facilities; they stock their information counters with the brochures in different languages; they print the Helpline phone number in the daily racing programs; and they’re placing banners on their website.  I think it was January of ’07 Dr. Fong gave us a presentation, and he said it was so important to get this phone number out and get the helpline used and then this is also a source then for mailing out the self-help books, I believe.  So we’ve been focusing on getting that number out, and perhaps next year this study might show more phone calls.  We don’t know.

Also, the industry has always had what’s called Winners Foundation.  Winners Foundation is part of the chaplaincy services and they have Alcoholics Anonymous; they have Narconon, whatever, for drug treatment.  And when a need shows, they would also open one for Gamblers Anonymous, and this is an ongoing program that is on the back side of every racetrack to service the people at the racetrack.  Now the industry also has many talented people with special abilities, and one of them is the horseracing television production studio at Santa Anita Park.  And when I sent out an email saying, we ask for your help, they volunteered to produce public service announcements for television distribution.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  When did you make that call?

MS. ROSS:  I think it was December or January.  I just referred them directly over to the Office of Problem Gambling so that they can work directly with them.  Also, TBG, one of the advanced deposit wagering sites that’s on our website, volunteered to do public service announcements and also they have a banner on their website which goes out nationally to all their customers about problem gambling.

I would like to note, that while we do have the ADW website links on our website, we have links to every place that takes the California racing signals—the racetracks, the simulcast wagering facilities, the fairs, and the ADWs, so everybody is listed on the website.  It’s not just the ADWs.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So you’re saying it’s positive to have Youbet and others on a state-sponsored website?
MS. ROSS:  We’ve asked them.  We have not—we’ve asked for volunteers now because, face it, we are not real clear on how much a problem we are.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.

MS. ROSS:  And we want to see, What are they willing to give before we basically, you know…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why don’t you ask your board to take it off the website?

MS. ROSS:  Take it off?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  I mean, I’m not king here.

MS. ROSS:  Okay.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The governor’s the king.  We work together.  But I think, if you think about it, if you can—and of course, there are governor’s appointees; is that correct?  Maybe you have some interaction with the Governor’s Office and, of course, you’re having your interaction with us and the Office of Problem Gambling and the folks here.  I mean, if there’s some consensus that state sites should not be portals to private companies that offer betting opportunities, that seems to be a no-brainer for me, but maybe you can discuss it with the folks in the administration.

MS. ROSS:  Would that also include our horserace tracks and our satellite wagering facilities?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I looked at your site last night.  Your horserace tracks are almost explanations of your facilities.  But I think, at some point in time when you get  a direct link to a site where you can bet—and I have no problem with the—I think private companies having that—I mean, Mr. Miranda mentioned his websites and others.  I mean, they’re private.  We don’t have a Bureau of Indian Affairs state website and you click on it; you get right to Pachanga.

MS. ROSS:  Got it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You know, I mean, that’s the distinction I’m talking about  So I think at some point, you know, you ought to look at, if you will, that particular item as a point of discussion.  Talk to Mr. Shapiro about that.  We only want to begin that dialog.  I mean, you’re the Horseracing Board.  But, you know, at some point, it seems to be worthy of discussion on whether or not that ought to be the appropriate policy on state-run websites.

MS. ROSS:  Okay.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s all we would ask.

MS. ROSS:  That brings another point up.  In December of 2005, Dr. Fong gave a presentation about gambling addiction, and I remember one of the things was the frequency of placing a wager.  And obviously, when you go to the racetrack and if you’re a pathological gambler and you’re looking for that quick rush of getting a bet down, you get your bet down; then you wait for the horses to come to the track to be saddled, to do their post parade, to enter the shoot, to run the race, to go to the winner’s circle, to get off the track, to send the water truck around, to send the ____ around again.  You’re looking at best of getting a web/wet ?? bet down once every 20 minutes on maybe a quarter-horse; every 30 minutes on a thoroughbred race, if you’re lucky.  So is that as attractive now that other opportunities are available, or is the fact that we offer ADW, is that attracting pathological gamblers now to our sport because they can intersperse it with other wagers?  We don’t know any of this, but I can certainly bring this up to the board.  Then additionally…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And also you’re bringing to the board, I mean, as you talk about those particular type of gamblers, you also, the industry, seems to be heading towards more exotic-type bets that obviously, you know, some in the pathological category and Dr. Fong would probably answer that.  I’m not sure.  But the risk, you know, reward continuum is in their heads.  But it seems to me, you know, when you have more exotic bets that are more difficult, you know, only others can understand, particularly those who bet quite often, those seem to be more attractive.  It’s not to say that those are good or bad, but I think there is, as we’ve asked the Lottery, when you make choices for various types of bet, is there a linkage to a certain type of gambler on the continuum that Dr. Fong has mentioned?  You know, if you ask, you know, somebody on my staff to do Trifecta exotic bet mixed with something and going on in another state, they’ll probably go, I’ll just pick the winner.

MS. ROSS:  A rolling Trifecta.

SENATOR FLOREZ:   A rolling Trifecta.  But, you know, if you’re asking Steve Harvey [sic] here or somebody, maybe has a better understanding of Senator Vincent.  Steve, right.  I’m not going to go into that.

MS. ROSS:  We can look into that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But you’re right.  I just think, that when you make those choices for games, there seems to be a connection to those who, you know, may have a higher propensity to enter into this particular aspect, and particularly with horseracing.  Let me just read something to you out of the report, 2006 Report, we’re talking about today.  It says:  It is generally estimated between 2 and 5 percent of the adult population are problem or pathological gamblers in jurisdictions with “mature” gambling markets.  Prevalence rates are among regular machine players, and track betters can be as high as 25 percent.

You know, there seems to be a much higher prevalence for problem, you know, or systematic or pathological gamblers at these particular venues, and that’s why your industry is particularly important as we start to think about this.  I would even go so far as to say that the commission should have a hearing similar to this, just on problem gambling, particularly at the tracks.  I think it not only enlighten the commissioners, but it would also give them some sense, that when there are nexuses made by the satellite wagering, whether it’s additional facilities or satellite facilities or whether it’s, if you will, exotic bets, there always should be a connection to, if you will, what ultimately is, you know, the connection between, you know, what we’re trying to solve here at the state level which is pathological gambling.

So I would ask you to maybe consider asking the commission to have a similar—I know there’s lots of sub-hearings at hearings.  But this might be one worthy to bring in.  As you mentioned, you have Dr. Fong—that’s great—but maybe to bring others that were here today.  That would be helpful.
MS. ROSS:  Good point, good point.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Go ahead, Sue.  I’m sorry.

MS. ROSS:  There’s one other thing the industry’s doing and they’re doing it and they’re planning to continue as they are using their resources in this area.  Del Mar is providing meeting rooms to train the telephone counselors needed to staff the helpline.  I was recently informed that one of the tracks just wrote a check to the California Council on Problem Gambling that was quite generous.  And the Racing Associations next month are asking the board to approve a transfer of $2,012 in odd change to the Office of Problem Gambling, Gambling Addiction Program Fund, and this would be from wages made on advanced deposit wagering.

Now in addition to that, they’ve submitted some bills this year pertaining to advanced deposit wagering, and I know at least one of them contains language to make a continuous appropriation to the Office of Problem Gambling.  So the industry is aware, you know, we’re not completely free of problem gambling—we’re part of it—and they’re attempting in their ways to come up with solutions.  So now we know we’ve got a problem; we don’t know the extent of it.  And it’s not that they don’t want to spend money, but they want to spend it smart.  What if addressing the helplines and getting the brochures out and the workbooks is the best way to treat it?  It would be silly for us to fund a pathological treatment center.  But if they’re all pathological gamblers, then we should focus on that.  But we just don’t know.  So we’re going to have to get—but they are willing to provide information; they’re willing to provide resources; and they’re willing to do it on a continuous basis.  So that’s where horseracing is right now.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me ask a few questions, if I could.  The ability to self-select yourself out, is that a possibility in the current state of horseracing?  They say, you know, I recognize I’m pathological.  I don’t want to bet.  Is there a possibility there?


MS. ROSS:  I don’t know what they’re doing right now.  I can certainly find out and inform you of it.  Yes, it would be a possibility because I know, as the horseracing board in the past very, very rarely we have been asked to exclude people from various facilities or from tracks throughout California.  But it’s not something common.  I would have to check with each mutual department, see what their priorities are, and what they’re using right now.  So I will check on…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Check on that.  Also, in terms of the advanced deposit wagering, the advanced deposit wagering works because you make an advanced deposit, I assume?

MS. ROSS:  Yes.  What you have to do is, you have to set up an account with the track, and then you’re given a PIN number, and then you would go to one of the sites, the Youbet express bettors, the other ones, and you would then be able to wager through that particular site.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But are any of those in that value chain, it seems as though, if you had sought treatment at the state, you went through a program, and you said, you know, I recognize I’m a pathological gambler and I want to select out somewhere, I mean, Youbet probably has the ability or any of the internet based to…


MS. ROSS:  Turn them off right now.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  To turn you off right now, correct.  So that would be helpful that that is one node.  And the other would be, you know, the ability to set up an account at all, if you wanted to select out if you were in some other gaming.  I mean, all of the studies tell us, that if you’re a pathological gambler, that then it really doesn’t seem to matter much.  I mean, you can go from a card table to a slot machine, from a slot machine to a racetrack.


MS. ROSS:  Especially when Dr. Fong says there is a genetic component.  If I’m genetically programmed to be a problem gambler, I’ll sit there and I’ll make my horseracing bet and I’ll be on the phone to my ADW making a bet on somebody else, and I’ll be punching out Lottery tickets to get that action that I need.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s what I’m thinking.  If we have some sort of policy where self-selection is a cross-all modes for those pathological or those problematic gamblers, I mean, it seems to me, if you went to the office and went to the Office of State Problem Gambling and the Commission and others are all working on this, the Gambling Control Board and others and you just had one box, look, I’m just, bottom line, in the category of a pathological gambler and I want to checkmark the box, and the box means no bets on Youbet, no ability to entry into a card club, an identification with casinos, Indian casinos, that allows them to interact because they are, you know, obviously, you know, not part of this particular sovereign in the State of California.  I mean, then I think you have a holistic program where, you know, the individual through treatment has to make that selection, and Dr. Fong will probably help us with that.  But it seems as though that the technology is getting to a point, particularly in horseracing, where you have advanced deposit wagering, you have the ability to track so many cases to do that.  Maybe the board can talk a bit about that as well.  That would be helpful.

MS. ROSS:  There’s another thing.  It wasn’t Dr. Fong; it was another speaker in December 2005, and I’m sorry I can’t remember her name.  She talked about in other countries everybody’s issued an ID card.  And if your ID card shows up at that casino more than four times a month and somebody talks to you, if it continues, you are just locked out of every casino in that country.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  That might be something to have some discussion on with our Office of Problem Gambling.


You know, the last thing is, you know, the horseracing industry has been for quite a bit.


MS. ROSS:  1933.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  1933.  You know, we asked Mr. Miranda the same question.  You know, in terms of the research that, you know, that the industry is looking into these types of, if you will, addictive types of states, is the industry—it  might be a topic for the commission to see how much might go into the research side.  I think Dr. Fong said very clearly that good science is important in this, and I think that would be very positive as well, is to try to figure out what the connection is between certain types of, you know, as I mentioned, exotic bets, or is there different types of gaming platforms and what we’re ultimately trying to stop, which is 3 or 5 percent of the population.  Of course, you don’t want to ruin it ?? for the ’95 for recreational use.  But I think you want to be as precise as possible when we look at this problem, and I think the horseracing industry and board could do quite a bit to try to figure out what that participation might be, beyond writing a check to or participating with the council—I mean, direct research on your particular games, your particular bets, your particular platforms, and their connection with certain types of, if you will, pathological gamblers.  That would be positive as well.  Okay?


MS. ROSS:  Okay.  I’ll bring it up to them.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you very much, Sue, appreciate it.

Thank you all, appreciate it.


Okay.  Let’s go to Bruce Roberts, executive director, California Council on Problem Gambling.  Good morning.

MR. BRUCE ROBERTS:  Good afternoon.  I have to change the…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Oh, it’s afternoon already.  Sorry about that.


MR. ROBERTS:  __________.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Tell us about the California Council on Problem Gambling and then we’ll go from there.


MR. ROBERTS:  I’d be happy to.  First off, my name is Bruce Roberts.  I’m the executive director of the California Council.  I’ve held that position for four years twice—two years as acting while I continued to run a private business.  I sold that business because I believe so strongly in the issues involved here and what we’re trying to do today.  I take it very, very seriously but try to do it with a sense of humor, if I can.


The California Council was established in 1986, so we’ve been around 20 years, long before tribal gaming and long before internet expansion and all those kinds of things because we recognize there are problem gamblers out there, and they do need programs for treatment and services.  We don’t take a position on legalized gambling.  We believe that that horse left the barn when California voters voted to have it, but we do advocate for programs that services the problem gamblers and their families.  I stress the word families, and I’ll get to that in a little bit.


Problem gambling, if it were an infectious disease, it would create such a public outcry that there would be no need for hearings like this and things would be happening much quicker than they have in the past.  You know, I always say that in these last four years, services for problem gambling is like watching an iceberg melt.  We know something’s happening, but we just can’t see it.  And through all the different state agencies you’ve heard testimony from today and other people concerned with this issue, things are happening.  But I believe in what Dr. Fong said is, this is a problem that is systemic and it’s a need for…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Have you been around since ’86?

MR. ROBERTS:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Do you believe we have put enough money towards this particular problem—


MR. ROBERTS:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  --in the State of California?

MR. ROBERTS:  Unequivocally, it would be no.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  That’s the first hard, good, strong answer that I’ve heard today on this.  And the reason for that is, Why?  I mean, we have a report from you folks, right? that it is supposed to be 280…

MR. ROBERTS:  Yes.  I have no idea where that figure came from.  I’ve been with the counselor for 11 years, and I’d never heard it before, and so it’s a shock to hear it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s in a report that you guys have produced, correct?


MR. ROBERTS:  Therefore, I can’t explain it.  If it was in a report, you know, I would think it would be a typo back in 1998 because I can’t imagine the director then asking for $280 million to address problem gambling issues.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  If it was incorrect, it seems to be somewhere close to the right number, from my vantage point, in terms of the real problem.  I mean, just looking at a million or so in California, and if you look at $280 million and if you look at what other states have done and you use a ratio, I mean, I think it sounds somewhat close.


MR. ROBERTS:  You may be right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Maybe this was a Nostradamis-type of document that you guys—you knew this was going to happen ten years later or 20 years later or something like that because I think—30 years later actually, or 20 years later—because I’m just wondering—I mean, the purpose of this hearing is not to just have some oversight on what was being done but also to try to figure out ultimately what the legislature can do to fund a program that seems to be worthy of funding, and we have to make policy choices and we know budgets are tight and we know that we have to make these decisions.  But if we don’t know what we’re funding, if we don’t know ultimately why we’re funding it and how much should be funded, when we’re just going to be sitting around trying to figure out and waiting for, if you will, you know, kind of what I would all death by fees.  You know, we’re going to do $100 a table at a card club.  We’re going to ask tribes to do some research and some more money.  We’re asking horseracing folks to come up with more money for studies.


But at the end of the day, the State of California, with what could come back, come to us, in terms of 25 percent of Indian Gaming compacts, we’re going to run into a lot of money.  The question is, What are the State of California’s priorities?  What are we, the state, we the state, going to do to, if you will, take an additional increase in dollars coming into our General Fund, not Special Distribution Fund, General Fund?  What are we going to do to fund that rather than, if you will, being every industry to raise $2 million when the big bucks, you know, are really in essence coming to the state from, if you will, future compacts and other types of endeavors?  You know, it seems to me that we have to make a policy decision.  And I think the reason I’m asking that is, you’re saying that, you know, that number or a number higher than $3 million is probably the right policy choice.


MR. ROBERTS:  No question.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What do you think the number should be?


MR. ROBERTS:  We’ve always advocated a 1 percent solution.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  One percent.  Okay.

MR. ROBERTS:  We think it’s fair and equitable.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  One percent.  Okay.


And in terms of what you’ve heard today, just some general comments?  Agree with certain things, don’t agree with certain things?


MR. ROBERTS:  I wouldn’t know where to start, sir.  You know, we agree with many of the issues, many of the statistics. We disagree with many of the statistics, and for good reason.  To sit here and explain all of those to you this morning, I would need three days rather than three minutes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That’s fine.  Maybe you can come back to talk to us…

MR. ROBERTS:  I’d love that.  Great.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And do you have anything else to add?


MR. ROBERTS:  Yes.  What I wanted to do today is, I thought about this and I knew that all the other people that were going to be here would give you a plethora of statistics and what they’re doing and what they’re not doing.  What I want to do today is maybe speak as a voice for all the problem gamblers and their families out there. Being one myself, I have an intimate knowledge of what it’s like to be a problem gambler and trying to hold your life together and your family’s life together.  You know, no one wakes up one morning and says, you know, today I think I’m going to destroy my family or today I think I’m going to get fired or today I’m going to do all the other negative things that happen from problem gambling.


What happens is, it starts out like everyone, as entertainment.  And if I could digress for a minute, when I use the word entertainment, you know, 100 years ago gambling was considered a sin in this country.  Less than 50 years ago, it was considered a vice, and now it’s considered entertainment.  And so we strongly believe, that if it’s being sold to the population as entertainment, which it is for the vast majority of people, the state and the stakeholders in the industry definitely have a moral and social obligation to take care of the damage that’s being caused to that small percentage of people, whether it’s 1 percent, a half a percent, 1.5 percent, that doesn’t matter.  This is the genesis of problem gambling programs and issues in California, and we need to start somewhere and we need to start now.  Even as we sit here today, there’s people sleeping in their cars; there’s people cashing in 401(k)s; there’s people thinking about suicide; there’s people getting divorced; there’s children being separated from their families because of spousal abuse or child abuse.  All these things are going on for problem gamblers and pathological gamblers.


I urge you not to look just at the statistics, but look at these people.  Look at this as a public health issue.  I noted on the governors’ website, it says the governor’s responsible for the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the State of California.  And I just haven’t seen that happening when it comes to problem gambling and it’s an issue that’s been, needs strong support from this committee and needs to move forward as quickly as possible.


Just for example, in the area of growth, we can talk about numbers.  The helpline, for instance, started in 1998 as the Lottery mentioned.  We received that first funding from them and we thank them for that.  That was a start.  Now we’ve got much more work to do.  For instance, in September, the Office of Problem Gambling started a media campaign to create public awareness about the helpline.  Well, what happened was, in 1998, we would average about 100 calls a month with no publicity, no brochures, no posters, none of the stuff that we have available today.  And last month, we set a record of 705 intake calls.  We screened 1,700 calls but 705 people actually called out and cried out for help.  If you had a chance to just sit and listen to a few of these calls, most of them are truly pitiful and incomprehensible in nature.  I sat there for two days last month in January because I wanted to see what’s new back in Chicago.  Every helpline, by the way goes to our subcontractor in Chicago that does an outstanding service and provides us with many, many statistics that we use in presentations like this.

The unkindest cut of all is to tell these people there’s a helpline and there’s no help available.  You know, right now, the best we can do is refer them to Gamblers Anonymous which we do 100 percent of the time, but that’s, you know, there’s a down side to that because if people, as you intimated earlier, live in rural areas, single moms with a car that doesn’t work, can’t afford the gas to get a hundred miles to a meeting, they’re in trouble.  And then if you combine that with the people that have only a cursory understanding of English or don’t speak English at all, those people are left to primarily fend for themselves.  We think that’s unconscionable.  We think we’ve got to move forward with programs to address those issues.


So the issues go on and on and on.  Dr. Fong, who by the way, is my boss—he serves on our board of directors at the council—I forget what I was going to mention.  But anyway, we actually have 24 certified counselors in California.  So we’ve added 35 percent _____ to your testimony, which is good.  The problem is, we think there’s a million and a half problem gamblers, as Dr. Simmons mentioned in her study for the attorney general. The reason for that is because, in the Prevalence Study that recently came out, it talks about the adult population; and we know that 600,000 kids are also problem gamblers at this time.  That’s another area that we need to really take a hard look at and get some programs going and schools, let them know that there is a downside to gambling.  Give them the tools so they can make rational choices about whether or not they want to gamble or not gamble as they get a little bit older.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What do you think of the American Idol Lottery Scratcher tickets?

MR. ROBERTS:  I don’t think anything about it, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does it match your last sentence then, in terms of we’ve got to worry about the schools and it’s hard when you have kids?


MR. ROBERTS:  No, because, you know, the question implies that I have some kind of knowledge or opinion on it, and I really don’t.  I have a strong opinion, though, on…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who do you think the Lottery is targeting with American Idol Scratchers?

MR. ROBERTS:  I would think the 20-somethings.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  All right.  Go ahead.


MR. ROBERTS:  Yes.  I think a better example of the point you’re trying to make may be as selling poker sets next to Barbie dolls in Target stores and Wal-Mart, you know.  We think that industry needs to take a look at what they’re doing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What industry would that be?  The toy industry?


MR. ROBERTS:  No.  Merchandising, not the toys, not the toy business.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.


MR. ROBERTS:  The good news, G.A. is prospering.  Less than ten years ago, there were about 50 statewide meetings and now there’s about 180.  Attendance at these meetings have tripled.  You know, back in my day, it was five or six at a meeting.  And now, you’re lucky to get a seat if there’s 20 or 25 seats.  The meetings are all over.  There’s only Spanish-speaking meetings in the state, two Korean-speaking meetings, and one Chinese.  And once again, there’s none in the rural areas at all.


We do have three programs in community colleges in the state.  I’ll give you an example.  Last year in San Bernardino, I think it’s Valley College or City College or one of those, 16 people signed up to take the counselor course to learn about problem gambling.  This year, 41 signed up.  So this is what we do.  You know, we’re a grassroots organization.  We’re 501(c)(3) nonprofit.  We try to be the people that other folks come to when they want to learn about problem gambling, when they want to learn about what resources are available, what models are out there, what scientific research is available.  We can provide all that stuff and save the government quite a bit of time.


Just about done, I think.  I did want to take just a minute to talk about what I think is a very interesting area that no one has discussed, and that’s the criminal justice system, and that goes to overcrowding in prisons.  We know that the scientific research that says up to about 35 to 40 percent of all criminals incarcerated did so because of gambling are either directly or indirectly because of gambling addiction. With the advent of a Prop. 36-type Gambling Court, similar to the Drug and Alcohol Court, we think that will change those numbers significantly.


The first research study I would recommend here in California is to do one on our prison system.  And what brought that to my attention was the chief probation officer up in…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That would be folks that can’t gamble then, right?


MR. ROBERTS:  Pardon me?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  People in the prison system?  They’re not making bets from prison, right?  They’re not gambling…


MR. ROBERTS:  There’s more gambling in prison than in any casino in California.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  There’s a lot of office pools here too in the Capitol.  But I mean, in terms of getting to gamblers in facilities, I mean…


MR. ROBERTS:  I was doing an interview for a newspaper a couple of weeks ago, and I asked him about his office pool and was he in it yet, and he said, no, I’ve been here five years; I’ve never seen one.  And before the conversation was out, somebody came by and asking him how many boxes he wanted.  It goes on and on and on.  Like they say, What can I say in ten minutes that you’ve done your homework, you know, you’ve read the studies, you’ve read the reports.  But I definitely wanted to tell you that these aren’t statistics we’re talking about.  They’re people; they’re families.  And there is a way, as Dr. Fong said, through treatment to put these people’s lives back together.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


MR. ROBERTS:  Thank you, sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Appreciate it.


Okay.  Mr. Jones, this will be the last witness of the day, unless there’s public comment.  Anybody have any public comment?  Mr. Blonien does.  Okay.


Mr. Jones.


MR. FRED JONES:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I’ll try to be quick.  I now it’s been a long time.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You don’t have to be quick because you can take your time.  Go ahead.


MR. JONES:  Thank you.  Let me just start by saying I have really learned a lot today.  I really appreciate this hearing.  Clearly, Dr. Fong has been kind of a resource, and I’m going to start abusing him because I have his card now.  But that kind of information is important because what I’ve seen in the last decade or so that I’ve been dealing with gambling policy is that most of the research to date has been solely funded by the industry.  And so the skewing that Dr. Fong had mentioned in his remarks is definitely true.  What I’m finding, though, is now that gambling is becoming so ubiquitous in the United States, governments are starting to weigh in.  And so these three reports that have all come out in the last six months at least present a little bit more objective analysis of the problem.  All those we’ve seen today, a lot of the regulatory bodies are stacked with industry interest so it’s a concern.

CGAGE, as you know, is primarily a faith-based organization.  It’s very interesting, Mr. Roberts’ comments about the whole transition from sin to vice to entertainment.  Whether you consider it a sin or a vice or entertainment, our clergy have to deal with the reality of addiction, not just gambling addiction but alcohol addiction, elicit drugs, and so forth.  So whether you’re coming from a faith-based perspective or not, there’s certain realities that have to be faced with these problems and they’re huge.  You cannot quantify someone’s life.  You can’t quantify in terms of money, the value of a marriage, the value of good credit.  I mean, these are things that—I appreciate the research and the statisticians and others who are trying to put a dollar figure on it because, in the end, what can you do as policy makers but throw some money at these problems?  But I think, just in a general statement, and the theme of my remarks is, an ounce of prevention is worth a pound of cure.  I really feel that, no matter how much you scoop out the leaking water in the boat, the water’s going to take on and overcome you.  And so at the very least, from a broad, honest, candid perspective about gambling, the merits of gambling, be it to redistribute wealth to historically poor tribal members from California citizens, be it to give money to our K-12 system, that’s what gambling is.  It’s a redistribution of wealth, but I don’t think there’s a net gain.  You don’t gain from gambling.  You can’t gamble your society to prosperity.


So I think from a general perspective, at the very least, we ought to do what was recommended in 1999 by the Gambling Study Commission, we ought to have an across-the-board moratorium on any new expansion of any form of gambling anywhere in the United States.  This elusive internet gambling, yes, it’s obviously a problem and I think it will become a bigger problem.  But I don’t think we should, as policymakers, throw up our hands and say, you know, you’ll never be able to stop it, because you can order illicit drugs on line, but it doesn’t mean we shouldn’t draw the line and try to stop it.  So I think a phrase that has been used by the CRB representative, in California, we have state-promoted or state-authorized gambling, so the state has a responsibility.  You mentioned the American Idol Scratchers.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The state has a responsibility to what, to mitigate or to what?


MR. JONES:  Well, my argument would be to stop it because, again, my argument coming from…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I wanted to make sure I knew where you were coming from.


MR. JONES:  All the research is, gambling never pays.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.


MR. JONES:  For a society in general.  It may pay once in a while for a winner.  It may pay for the industry who redistributes the wealth to themselves or to some select group.  But in the net hole, it never pays.  I know that’s a position that’s kind of hard in the political arena, so at the very least I think we need to acknowledge things.  We need to be honest in our discussion.  This is not gaming; this is gambling.   We need to acknowledge that the business of gambling is a unique business, unlike a McDonald’s or unlike a retailer.  This is an industry, again, to be candid with you, Mr. Chairman, I consider parasitic, not predatory.  A predator eats its prey.  A parasite uses its host; it doesn’t want to kill its host.  And so that’s why the industry will acknowledge pathological problems.  They don’t want to kill their clientele.  I know these are negative.  These are over-the-top comments.  I don’t mean to do that, but I think we need to have at least an honest discussion of some of the merits or lack thereof, of the overall gambling industry.


You mentioned horseracing.  I’ve hard for a number of years that the only way the horseracing industry is going to survive is if they have slot machines, and they point to other states that have done, made them casinos.  But one of the direct results that I hope come from these studies is—and you mentioned it directly—that nearly five times the amount of pathological gamblers are going to horseracing than any other gambling venue.  So the idea of throwing gasoline on that fire with slot machines should be a no brainer.  It should be a nonsequitur to this body to even consider that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Even though ten times more folks go to Bingo, right?


MR. JONES:  Well, again, you have to fight it on many fronts.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s any, right.  It’s all fronts, correct?


MR. JONES:  Yes. absolutely.  I stand in awe to your point of the $3 million given to the Office of Problem Gambling, and their mission statement says that the Office of Problem Gambling is to provide quality research-driven leadership in prevention, intervention, and treatment for problem and pathological gamblers, their families, and communities.  That’s a pretty sweeping mission.  If that’s their statutory mission, given the statistics that we’ve heard throughout this hearing in which you’ve underscored, $3 million is a drop in the bucket.  The Lottery, spending $100,000 with gross revenues of $1.4 billion, that amounts to seven hundreds of one percent of their net revenues to address this issue.  And I’ve come to learn what the Lottery’s all about in the last couple of years through some litigation, and they will you, they’re doing it to raise money for the kids.  That’s their mandate.  They don’t see necessarily, clearly by their own dedication of resources, that their mandate to protect the public from themselves, and this is state-sponsored gambling.  So if state-sponsored gambling is so irresponsible to the community at large, imagine the private interests that are involved and which you really don’t have the true statistics to hold them accountable.


Thank you very much for this hearing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much, appreciate it.


Mr. Blonien.


MR. ROD BLONIEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and staff.  Rod Blonien on behalf of the Commerce Club and also Hollywood Park Casino.  I think this is a very good hearing you had today.  It was quite informative from my standpoint.  Both the Commerce Club and Hollywood Park Casino have long been involved with the California Council on Problem Gambling.  We’ve had fundraisers.  The industry recognizes that it has some responsibility to fund efforts like Mr. Roberts, and we’re very supportive.  And last year, when Assemblyman Bermudez added the $100 per table, there wasn’t one card club that I’m aware of that opposed it or expressed opposition to it.  We realize, as I think someone said here earlier, that we have a responsibility and we’re willing to step up and acknowledge that responsibility.  And people can argue, well, it should be more than $100.  We’re willing to talk about that.


You know, it’s unfortunate that people have addiction to gambling, addiction to alcohol, but we look at the other side of the coin.  We look at the recreation al opportunities that we provide people and we feel that there is some small percentage of people that have a problem.  We have worked with the commission in terms of their regulation.  If you go into a card club in this state, virtually everyone near the ATM machine will have a sign on top of it or next to it indicating to call this phone number for the California Council on Problem Gambling.  We’ve had self-exclusions at the Commerce Club, I know, for a number of years.  In fact, I was there one day when a fellow had exceeded his limit and came up and begged and pleaded and wanted to cash another check.  And they said, no.  They just would not allow him to do that, and the next day the guy may have—I don’t know—may have come back and thanked them.  But that day, he was sure, that if he could just get some more money, his luck was going to turn and that he was going to get a full house or four aces.  I mean, people think that the next turn of the card is going to be the one that’s going to get them back to even.  And most times, it does not happen, and that’s just about all I had to say.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Let me just ask the question I asked Mr. Miranda.  Can more be done from your industry in terms of funding the research necessary or even more dollars that are given?  And by saying more be done, let me preface that with also saying that we had compacts who are going through this place that will provide quite a bit of money to the State of California.  It will be our decision, given it’s no longer going to the Special Distribution Fund, to make a policy decision on whether the state should fund this.  Do card clubs have a similar thought process because what we’re doing with those additional dollars coming from compacts is a state decision.  The card clubs will, you know, through the Bermudez legislation that went through this committee at $100 per table.  I mean, at some point, do the fees that the state takes from card clubs already at this point in time, should we do more with the money that we get to go towards these, or should there be additional ad hoc fees on racetracks and card tables?  I mean, we just seem to be feeing our way through.  There’s nothing wrong with that.  I mean, it’s good raise money.  But at some point, the big dollars at some point in time, the state has to make some decision on what we do with that money, or what’s your thought on the approach thus far in how we’ve taken it?


MR. BLONIEN:  Well, I think that your question is very well put.  It really gets us back to, again, the cart being before the horse, and that is, we really need to have a statewide policy in gambling.  We need, and it’s too bad we couldn’t turn the hands of the clock back and go back to Governor Wilson and the first compacts and maybe even go back to 1933 when we authorized horseracing and recognized at that point that there were going to be people that are going to have a problem in terms of gambling.  We’ve never done that.  I think it should be done across the board in terms of all forms of gambling and look at it and make an assessment and a determination and, you know, I can’t argue with any of the witnesses that are here.  Certainly there have been marriages that have been marriages because of gambling.  There have been marriages that have been ruined because of pornography; there have been marriages that have been ruined because of women working outside the home, you know, a jillion reasons why families fall apart, and it’s a sad day when that happens.  And, you know, in terms of the money that the state gets from compacts, I think the horseracing industry feels that they need some for mitigation.  And in terms of using some of it for problem gambling, I think it should definitely be done, and I think you should also take a look at the Lottery perhaps and see that if some of that money shouldn’t be going to problem gambling.


In terms of the card club industry that I’m speaking on behalf of today, I think that we’d be willing to talk about some additional funds and maybe also—we have a bill that we’re coming forward with to revisit the Gambling Control Act after ten years.  And if we decide that we don’t need to have the commission and the division every year to go through six to 12 inches of paper to determine to whether someone should be re-licensed, maybe that frees up some money that can go for studies on problem gambling.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is it fair to say, though, from your perspective, a card club perspective, that whatever is assessed should be, at best, assessed fairly among all gaming industries, or are we going to have—you know, I’ve mentioned coming ?? compacts.  But it seems to me that, you know, discussions should take place, that there be some sort of across the board, including the Lottery.  The Lottery does not—I mean, $100,000 for general revenues generated in the billions doesn’t seem to me a lot of money.  I mean, a hundred thousand out of a couple of billion doesn’t seem to be a fair assessment.


MR. BLONIEN:  I think it should be across the board.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right, because we can make up some dollars there as well.  Okay.  Thank you very  much.


MR. BLONIEN:  You’re very welcome.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, appreciate it.  Any other comments, public comments?  Anyone like to mention anything else at this point in time?


Let me simply say thank you for coming.  I appreciate folks who are interested and sticking around.  I know it’s a very long hearing, appreciate the members that took the time to show up.  Let me just kind of summarize by simply saying what we’re expecting out of this hearing because sometimes we just gavel and we move on.  We’re expecting hopefully a discussion on a change of the website, all-state websites.  We’re expecting some eliminations of private company discussions to take place in terms of private companies being put on state, if you will, websites.  We’re very interested in, if you will, some of the state making some priority choices in terms of what we need to do on our side of the ledger as we make decisions going through with the budget process.  We’re either committed to this or we’re not, and it seems to me we need to be committed more than $3 million—that’s for sure.  And so discussions, in terms of money, will actually need to take place.  We’re going to ask our division, particularly the Office of Problem Gaming, to cost out this report, which is the statewide plan, very hard to fund anything that isn’t costed out.


We’re also expecting some research from the Lottery in terms of the way it picks its game and its nexus to problem gaming.  We’re expecting the same from horseracing.  And we would also ask Ms. Miranda to also look at future games and what they’re doing in terms of the technology for self-selection out.  That’s very interesting in terms of what might be a possibility and that be redirected back to the committee and also to all other responsible agencies.


Lastly, let me just simply say that, you know, this is the first hearing of the GO committee.  This is the hearing prior to any gaming bill run through this committee, and I thought it was extremely important to set the bar and particularly important, for at least, to myself as a chairman, and I know the other members who aren’t here will get the transcript hopefully and go through it.  But, you know, every decision we make here will have some impact on pathological gamblers, period, so I think it’s good to start the year or this session with this hearing so we can understand when we’re making decisions ultimately what the impact will be and ultimately if we’re mitigating for that impact, mitigating meaning, we’re either going to have a state policy—it’s going to be fair, it’s going to be across the board, and everyone needs to participate, and then we’re going to have make some decisions on our side.  I’m not much for going back into opening up compacts, asking for folks to do that, going back to card clubs, asking for more assessments per table.  I’m not really interested, in essence, going to a horseracing and asking them to do something more per se.  What I’m asking is, is that what people are giving us today, with everything coming in, are we making a priority choice at the state level to use that money?  And if we don’t have enough money, then we need to go back and try to figure out ultimately what a policy should be that’s coherent and stable and across the board.

Quite frankly, I think, if you look at what was coming in, I think we have to just make a priority choice and we have to try to figure out what’s more important, and that’s a decision that this legislature will make and we all have our projects, whether it’s a hydrogen highway or additional funding.  You know, all of it adds up to $6 (million) to $10 million in many cases.  And the governor and the legislator will hopefully, he’ll make some decisions on this.

I do want to say and I do want to thank the administration for providing folks here today, very appreciative for doing that, and we look forward to working with the administration for some holistic solution.  I do know that the Governor’s Office is very interested in these particular issues, and we look forward to working with them as well.  So we’ll adjourn the GO Committee and thank you all for coming.
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